
 

TUPELO REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING 

MAY 07, 2024 AT 6:00 PM 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS | CITY HALL 

AGENDA 

INVOCATION:                                COUNCIL MEMBER CHAD MIMS 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:       COUNCIL MEMBER TRAVIS BEARD 

CALL TO ORDER:                          COUNCIL PRESIDENT TRAVIS BEARD 

 

CONFIRMATION OR AMENDMENT TO THE AGENDA AND AGENDA ORDER 

PROCLAMATIONS, RECOGNITIONS AND REPORTS AGENDA 

PROCLAMATIONS 

1. IN THE MATTER OF AQUATIC MONTH PROCLAMATION AF 

2. IN THE MATTER OF PROCLAMATION FOR L.C. SIMS DAY 

RECOGNITION GIRL/BOY SCOUTS 

EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 

PUBLIC RECOGNITION 

MAYOR'S REMARKS 

(CLOSE REGULAR MEETING OPEN PUBLIC AGENDA) 

PUBLIC AGENDA 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

APPEALS 

CITIZEN HEARING 

- 1 -



 

 

(CLOSE PUBLIC AGENDA AND OPEN REGULAR SESSION) 

ACTION AGENDA 

3. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL FOR A SAFE HAVEN BABY BOX AT FIRE 

STATION 3 BR  

4. IN THE MATTER OF  MONETARY DONATION FOR SAFE HAVEN BABY BOX BR 

ROUTINE AGENDA 

5. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF APRIL 16, 2024 COUNCIL 

MEETING 

6. IN THE MATTER OF BILL PAY KH 

Chad Mims 

Buddy Palmer 

Rosie Jones 

7. IN THE MATTER OF ADVERTISING AND PROMOTIONAL ITEMS KH 

8. IN THE MATTER OF THE 2025 BUDGET CALENDAR KH 

9. IN THE MATTER OF PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 5, 2024 

TN 

10. IN THE MATTER OF LIEN RESOLUTION FOR UNPAID PROPERTY CLEANING 

COSTS TN 

11. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF MISSISSIPPI STATE DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH GRANT APPLICATION AWARD FOR FORMATION OF THE MAYOR’S 

HEALTH COUNCIL TN 

12. IN THE MATTER OF AN ORDER AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF REAL 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 200 DOZIER STREET AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR 

AND CITY CLERK TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT FOR PURCHASE TN 

13. IN THE MATTER OF REJECTING REVERSE BID #2024-014PD -  TWO 1500 

CHEVROLET SILVERADO CREW CAB TRUCKS (SSV) JQ   

14. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE ADDITION OF ITEM REMOVED FROM 

ASSET LIST AT NORTH MS NARCOTICS UNIT JQ 

- 2 -



15. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING SEIZED VEHICLE TO NMNU ASSET LIST JQ 

16. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF NMNU SURPLUS JQ 

17. IN THE MATTER OF SURPLUS OF TWO FIRE APPARATUS FOR SALE BR 

18. IN THE MATTER OF SURPLUS 2009 NISSAN VERSA FOR AUCTION – MUNICIPAL 

COURT RC 

19. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF CADENCE BANK ARENA MINUTES OF 

MARCH 18, 2024 KK 

20. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF SURPLUS ITEM  JT  

21. IN THE MATTER OF AWARD OF BID # 2023-065WL FOR THE LABOR AND 

MATERIALS AT THE NORTH GREEN STREET SUBSTATION JT  

22. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF CONTRACT WITH POWER GRID COMPANY 

FOR BID # 2023-065WL (LABOR AND MATERIALS AT THE NORTH GREEN STREET 

SUBSTATION) JT  

23. IN THE MATTER OF AN EMERGENCY PURCHASE OF THREE (3) 500 kVA THREE 

PHASE PADMOUNT TRANSFORMERS JT  

24. IN THE MATTER OF REQUEST TO REJECT BID NO. 2024-012WL (WATER 

MATERIALS)  JT  

25. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF THE TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MINUTES OF 

MAY 2, 2024 JT  

26. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF THE 2024 CITY OF TUPELO AND ITAWAMBA 

COUNTY INMATE HOUSING INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT AND 

TO AUTHORIZE THE PRESIDENT OF THE CITY COUNCIL AND THE MAYOR TO 

EXECUTE ON BEHALF OF THE CITY SR 

27. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN EXECUTED CONTRACT WITH CENTURY 

CONSTRUCTION GROUP, INC. FOR THE PROVISION OF DEBRIS REMOVAL 

SERVICES IN ACCORDANCE WITH RFP 23-055PW SR 

28. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN EXECUTED ALTERNATE CONTRACT 

WITH ASHBRITT FOR THE PROVISION OF DEBRIS REMOVAL SERVICES IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH RFP 23-055PW SR 

29. IN THE MATTER OF THE APPROVAL OF AN EXECUTED CONTRACT WITH 

DEBRIS TECH FOR THE PROVISION OF DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH RFP 23-056PW SR 

(CLOSE REGULAR SESSION) 

STUDY AGENDA 

- 3 -



S1. IN THE MATTER OF DEVELOPMENT CODE AMENDMENT – SIGNS BL 

S2. IN THE MATTER OF DEVELOPMENT CODE AMENDMENTS TA-23-01 BL 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

ADJOURNMENT 

- 4 -



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Todd Jordan, Mayor 

DATE April 17, 2024 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF AQUATIC MONTH PROCLAMATION AF 
  

 

Request:  

For your approval. 

 

- 5 -

Item # 1.



 

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 

Aquatic Month 
 

PROCLAMATION 

WHEREAS, Tupelo Aquatic Center is vital to the happy lives of all our citizens:  and education, athletic and 
recreation programs throughout the State of Mississippi encompass a multitude of activities that can result in personal 
accomplishments, self-satisfaction and family unity for all citizens, regardless of their background, ability level, or age; 
and 

WHEREAS, citizens of The City of Tupelo should recognize the vital role that swimming and aquatic-related 
activities relate to good physical and mental health and enhance the equality of life for all people; and 

WHEREAS, the staff of Tupelo Aquatic Center recognizes the ongoing efforts in educating the public on pool 
safety issues and initiatives by the pool, spa, water park, recreation and parks industries. 

WHEREAS, the City of Tupelo is extremely proud of the swimming facilities, aquatic programming and other related 
activities in Tupelo and their contribution to providing to all ages a healthy place to recreate, a place to learn and 
grow, to swim, build self-esteem, confidence and sense of self worth which contributes to the quality of life in our 

community.; 

NOW THEREFORE, I, Todd Jordan, Mayor of The City of Tupelo, do hereby proclaim the month of May 2024 as 

Aquatic Month 

in the city of Tupelo, and I do hereby encourage all citizens to recognize and promote the importance of acknowledging 
and adopting positive water safety habits and routines, especially as May will mark Aquatic Water Safety Month. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the City of Tupelo, Mississippi, to 
be affixed this the 7th day of May, 2024. 

 

 

 

Todd Jordan, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

 

 

 

Kim Hanna, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 6 -

Item # 1.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Scott Costello, Communications Director 

DATE March 27, 2024 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF PROCLAMATION FOR L.C. SIMS DAY 
  

 

Request:  

Mayor Jordan will present a proclamation for Luther Cunningham (L.C.) Sims Day. 

 

- 7 -

Item # 2.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROCLAMATION 

 
WHEREAS, Luther C. Sims is a lifelong resident of Tupelo, Mississippi, born on May 14, 1924; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Sims served as a supply clerk for the U.S. Army from March 1943 to February 
1946, serving in the Pacific Theater during World War II and winning the following medals— 
Asiatic-Pacific Theater Operations Medal, the Philippine Liberation Ribbon with a Bronze Star 
and World War II Victory Medal; and 
 
WHEREAS, after graduation from George Washington Carver High School and training at 
Okolona Industrial School, Mr. Sims joined his father as a brick mason, supporting construction 
on landmarks such as Reed’s Department Store, the old Woolworth Building, the U.S. Post Office, 
Tupelo Hardware, the Bank of Mississippi and Leake and Goodlett; and  
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Sims was married to the late Gloria E. Rogers Sims for 70 years and the couple 
were parents to seven children, grandparents of nine and great grandparents of 17;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that, I, Todd Jordan, Mayor of the City of Tupelo, 
Mississippi, do hereby proclaim Tuesday, May 14, 2024, as 
 
 
 
 

in Tupelo, Mississippi, and encourage all citizens to help Mr. Sims celebrate his 100th birthday on 
Tuesday, May 14, 2024. 
  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the City of Tupelo 
to be affixed this the 7th day of May 2024. 
                  

 
 ____________________ 

                    Todd Jordan, Mayor  
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________ 
Kim Hanna, City Clerk 
 

Luther Cunningham (L.C.) SimS DaY 

Luther Cunningham (L.C.) SimS DaY 

- 8 -

Item # 2.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Brad Robinson, Fire Chief 

DATE April 16, 2024 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL FOR A SAFE HAVEN BABY BOX AT 

FIRE STATION 3 - BR  
  

 

Request:  

This is an agreement to lease a Safe Haven Baby Box and agree to maintain this Baby Box to the 

standards as required in the lease Agreement. This is a safe way to surrender a child as 

Mississippi State Law states, within the first 45 days of birth. This will give a safe and climate –

controlled environment for the child and discreet way for the parent(s) to surrender a child. This 

will be placed at Fire Station 3 located at 902 S Veterans Blvd. The expenses of this will be paid 

from an outside group that will make a donation to the City of Tupelo.  

 

- 9 -

Item # 3.



LEASE AND SERVICE AGREEMENT 
 

THIS LEASE AND SERVICE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into 

effective this _____ day of _______, 202_, by and between Safe Haven Baby Boxes, Inc., an 

Indiana nonprofit corporation (“SHBB”) and  __________________, Mississippi (“Provider”).   

 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, SHBB is a nonprofit educational organization that provides information and 

services related to child welfare, safe haven laws, initiation and implementation of newborn safety 

devices (“Safety Device”), and awareness related to preventing child abandonment; 

 

WHEREAS, Provider desires to install a Safety Device on Provider’s premises and SHBB 

wishes to lease a Safety Device to Provider at Provider’s premises as defined herein; 

 

WHEREAS, Mississippi Code ANN.§§ 43-15-201 – 43-15-209, the Baby Drop off Law, 

provides certain protections by way of limited immunity for safe haven sites and their staff; 

 

WHEREAS, Provider desires to lease a Safety Device from SHBB and have it installed 

on Provider’s premises (the “Premises”); 

 

WHEREAS, SHBB is agreeable to placing a Safety Device on the Provider’s premises 

and undertaking certain services in relation thereto;  

 

WHEREAS, Provider has consulted its legal, financial, and insurance related advisors and 

has confirmed that its location and operation is acceptable under the laws and regulations of its 

jurisdiction for the placement of a Safety Device. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the foregoing recitals which are 

incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement, the mutual terms and promises 

contained herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the parties agree as follows: 

 

 Section 1. Installation. SHBB shall provide to Provider one (1) Safety Device for 

installation by Provider on the Premises located at (Insert location information and 

address).  Delivery of the Safety Device shall be the expense of the Provider. SHBB has the 

option at any time to oversee the installation of the Safety Device and advise as to installation on 

the appropriate placement to maximize awareness and implementation of its educational objectives 

as set forth in this Agreement and on the operation of and protocols for the Safety Device. SHBB 

and Provider agree to cooperate with respect to the appropriate third-party contractors for the 

placement of the Safety Device and to ensure that such third-party has the appropriate skill and 

knowledge for constructing improvements to Provider’s facility. Provider is to pay for all 

installation costs and expenses for labor and/or materials. Provider is responsible for compliance 

with all applicable federal, state, and municipal or local laws, rules, and regulations, and all laws, 

rules, and regulations pertaining to permitting requirements for the installation of the Safety 

- 10 -

Item # 3.



 
 

Lease and Service Agreement   2 

Device.  Provider further agrees to abide by the policies and procedures for installation, operation, 

and maintenance of the Safety Device as outlined in Exhibit “A” (the “Policies and Procedures”) 

of this Agreement, which is hereby incorporated herein and made a substantive part of this 

Agreement by reference. 

 
 Section 2. Services by SHBB.  SHBB shall provide annual services related to the 

performance of this Agreement. Such services shall include:  

 

A. Providing educational materials to Provider and policies and procedures relating to the 

maintenance of the Safety Device to Provider;  

 

B. Operating a toll-free phone number for the general public to utilize in emergency situations 

involving abandoned children or issues related thereto;  

 
C. Educating emergency services personnel related to use of the Safety Device;  

 
D. Providing educational information to the general public regarding the location and 

awareness of the Safety Device at the Provider’s facility as well as other educational 

resources related to child welfare advocacy and safe haven law awareness;  

 
E. Provide at minimum an annual inspection and perform maintenance on the Safety Device; 

and; 

 
F. Exclusively repair or replace parts if/when the Safety Device is malfunctioning at expense 

of Provider as set forth under Section 4 of this Agreement and as otherwise provided in 

this Agreement (collectively Subsections A-F hereinafter referred to as the “Services”). 

 
Section 3. Lease and Service Term. The term of this Agreement shall be for five (5) years 

(“Term”) and shall renew for successive five (5) year terms upon the mutual agreement of the 

parties to the terms, fees, and conditions, unless terminated in accordance with the terms of this 

Agreement or as otherwise agreed to by the Parties. 

 

Section 4. Consideration. In consideration for leasing the Safety Device and providing 

the Services described under Sections 1 and 2 above, Provider agrees to pay SHBB an initial fee 

of Fifteen Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($15,000.00), unless otherwise agreed to by the parties 

under Section 3 of this Agreement.  Provider shall pay a renewal fee of Five Hundred and 00/100 

Dollars ($500.00) for each successive Term under this agreement, due within thirty (30) days of 

the start of each successive Term.  Additionally, Provider shall pay an annual fee of Five Hundred 

and 00/100 Dollars ($500.00) and other associated expenses as determined from time to time by 

SHBB on January 1 of every year that this Agreement is in force.  The foregoing fees and expenses 

include, but are not limited to, the services and expenses listed in the Services, Fees, and Expenses 

Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit “B” which is hereby incorporated herein made a substantive 

part of this Agreement by reference. 

 

Section 5. Obligations of Provider.  In addition to any and all other obligations of the 

- 11 -

Item # 3.



 
 

Lease and Service Agreement   3 

Provider set forth herein, Provider shall: 

 

A. Follow all policies and procedures governing the use of the Safety Device as provided by 

SHBB, which may change from time to time. SHBB shall provide at least thirty (30) days 

prior written notice to Provider for any changes or additions to its policies and/or 

procedures. Provider shall have thirty (30) days to review any changes to the policies and/or 

procedures relating to this Agreement and to notify SHBB if Provider accepts such 

updated/new policies/procedures. If Provider does not tender written Notice to SHBB that 

it does not agree to the new changes within thirty (30) days of receipt of same, then Provider 

agrees to said changes and any such changes shall become a substantive part of this 

Agreement. Provider and SHBB agree to negotiate any rejected changes or additions to the 

extent possible.  Any revised changes or additions to the policies and/or procedures must 

comply with the then current laws of the State of Mississippi.  For any rejected 

changes/additions to the policies and/or procedures arising herein or relating to this 

Agreement that cannot be negotiated/agreed to after a good faith attempt to do so, the pre-

existing version shall remain in effect or this Agreement may be terminated. Such policies 

and procedures are included as Exhibit A to this Agreement and, by way of Provider’s 

signature hereto, shall evidence Provider’s acknowledgment and receipt of the Policies and 

Procedures. 

 

B. Provider agrees to comply with Mississippi and Federal law pertaining to the operation, 

maintenance, installation, and removal of the Safety Device. 

 

C. Provider agrees to maintain the Safety Device in good working order, the costs of which 

are to be borne by Provider. 

 

D. Provider agrees to not change, add to, subtract from, alter, rebrand, or otherwise modify 

the Safety Device and accompanying signage as set forth in Exhibit A in any manner 

whatsoever without the prior written approval of SHBB.  

 
E. Provider agrees to use best efforts to prevent any third parties from adding to, subtracting 

from, altering, rebranding, or otherwise modifying the Safety Device and accompanying 

materials/signage as set forth in Exhibit A in any manner whatsoever without prior written 

approval by SHBB. 

 
F. Provider agrees to immediately notify SHBB of any damage, alteration, and/or 

modification to the Safety Device. 

 
G. Provider shall refer to the Safety Device as a “Safe Haven Baby Box” or “Baby Box.” 

 
 
 
 

H. Provider agrees to accept complete liability for any and all damages attributed to any and 

all unapproved alterations and/or modifications to the Safety Device made by Provider and 

- 12 -

Item # 3.



 
 

Lease and Service Agreement   4 

any and all damages attributed to unapproved alterations and/or modifications  to 

accompanying parts of the Safety Device, including required signage/materials made by 

Provider. Provider agrees to accept complete liability for modifications to the Safety 

Device which are the result of: its own actions, omissions, and/or failure to use best efforts 

to maintain the Safety Device in good working order or best efforts to prevent any 

modifications to the Safety Device by a third party. 

 

I. Provider shall procure and maintain twenty-four (24) hour alarm monitoring of the Safety 

Device at all times in accordance with directions for the same from SHBB and shall 

confirm with SHBB that such service is acceptable. 

 
J. Should the alarm monitoring service be disconnected for any reason, or should the Safety 

Device malfunction in any other way, Provider shall immediately notify SHBB of said 

malfunction and shall secure the Safety Device and ensure it is not available for public use 

by locking its exterior door and removing all signage and material related to its use and 

functionality. Further, should the Safety Device malfunction, Provider agrees that it will 

post signage that the Safety Device is presently unavailable and Provider agrees that it will 

keep the Safety Device secured and closed to the public until SHBB approves the Safety 

Device to be reopened to the public for public use as a Safety Device. 

 

K. Provider agrees that SHBB may, but is not required to, inspect the Safety Device at any 

time including, but not limited to: to ensure that it is in good working order, to ensure 

proper branding and signage is being displayed, and to conduct tests related to its 

functionality and monitoring and alarm systems. 

 

L. Provider acknowledges and agrees to maintain current knowledge of any changes to said 

Mississippi State Law or Federal law governing the Safety Device and acknowledges and 

agrees to operate and maintain the Safety Device in accordance with the most recent 

version of said State and Federal laws. 

 

M. Provider shall bear the cost of operating, maintaining, removing, repairing and/or otherwise 

modifying (modifications subject to approval of SHBB) the Safety Device. 

 
IT IS IMPERATIVE THAT ANY MALFUNCTION IDENTIFIED WITH 

RESPECT TO THE SAFETY DEVICE OR ANY DISCONNECTION IN THE 

SAFETY DEVICE MONITORING SYSTEM RESULT IN THE IMMEDIATE 

SECURING AND LOCKING OF THE SAFETY DEVICE SO THAT IT MAY NOT 

BE USED BY THE PUBLIC DURING THIS TIME PERIOD. FAILURE TO DO SO 

MAY RESULT IN A THREAT OF BODILY HARM OR DEATH TO AN INFANT 

PLACED IN THE SAFETY DEVICE DURING ANY PERIOD OF TIME IN 

WHICH THE SAFETY DEVICE IS MALFUNCTIONING OR NOT. 

 

Section 6. Representations and Warranties. 
 

A. Representations & Warranties of Provider. Provider represents and warrants that the 

- 13 -

Item # 3.



 
 

Lease and Service Agreement   5 

undersigned is a duly acting and authorized agent of Provider who is empowered to execute 

this Agreement with full authority of Provider. Further, Provider has undertaken a 

reasonable investigation into the laws and regulations governing the applicable jurisdiction 

within which it intends to place the Safety Device and has confirmed that such placement 

and administration of the Safety Device does not violate any provision of any law, 

ordinance, governmental regulation, court order, or other similar governmental controls. 

 

 

B. Representation & Warranties of SHBB. SHBB represents and warrants that the 

undersigned is a duly acting and authorized agent of SHBB who is empowered to execute 

this Agreement with full authority of SHBB.  Further, SHBB has full ownership of the 

Safety Device.  SHBB represents and warrants that the Safety Device is fit for use and will 

operate as a Safety Device in accordance with Safe Haven for Infants Act, NMSA 1978 

Section 24-22-1.1. 

 

C. SHBB REPRESENTS THAT THE SAFETY DEVICE IS NOT A MEDICAL 

DEVICE AND HAS CONFIRMED SUCH WITH THE FOOD AND DRUG 

ADMINISTRATION. SHBB REPRESENTS THAT THE SAFETY DEVICE IS NOT 

INTENDED AS A CONSUMER PRODUCT AND THUS IS NOT REGISTERED 

WITH THE CONSUMER PRODUCT SAFETY COMMISSION. SHBB FURTHER 

REPRESENTS THAT THE SAFETY DEVICE IS NOT REGISTERED WITH THE 

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION AND/OR THE FEDERAL 

COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION. SHBB REPRESENTS THAT THE 

SAFETY DEVICE IS NOT TESTED BY NATIONALLY RECOGNIZED TESTING 

LABORATORIES PROGRAM. 

 

Section 7. Insurance.  Provider agrees to procure and maintain in full force and effect at 

all times during the Term of this Agreement and any renewals thereof, at its own cost and expense, 

a policy or policies of comprehensive commercial general liability insurance on an occurrence 

basis, in the amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate and a $2,000,000 limit 

umbrella coverage related to the Safety Device’s placement and operation in or about Provider’s 

facility against all loss, damage or liability for personal injury or death of any person or  loss or 

damage to property occurring in upon or about the Safety Device during the Term of this 

Agreement and all extensions thereof.  This insurance policy need not be a separate policy solely 

because of this Agreement but, rather, will be part of the Provider’s general liability and umbrella 

policies.  

 

 Section 8.  Indemnification.  Each party agrees to defend and indemnify, protect and hold 
harmless the other party, its officers, directors, employees, volunteers, independent contractors, 
agents, and all other persons and related entities thereof, against any loss, claim at law or equity, 
cause of action, expenses, damages or any other liability (collectively, “Claim”) arising in relation 
to and to the extent of the indemnifying party’s gross negligence or willful or wanton misconduct, 
whether acts or omissions, in the installation, placement, removal, use, and maintenance of the 
Safety Device in, on, or about Provider’s facility or premises.  No provision in this Agreement 
modifies or waives any provision of the Mississippi Tort Claims Act. 
 

- 14 -

Item # 3.



 
 

Lease and Service Agreement   6 

Section 9. Termination.   Provider may terminate this Agreement upon sixty (60) days  

prior written notice from Provider to SHBB prior to the end of the Term, otherwise this Agreement 

shall renew for a successive Term.  In accordance with the terms of this Agreement, Provider 

and/or SHBB may terminate this Agreement on notice of a change of policies and procedures by 

SHBB that Provider did not previously agree to after a good faith attempt has been made to 

negotiate the change or addition to the policies and/or procedures arising herein or relating to this 

Agreement; however, a required change of policy or procedure pursuant to compliance with a 

Mississippi State or Federal law shall not be grounds to terminate this Agreement.  SHBB may 

terminate this Agreement for any reason specified under Section 10, below. At the point of 

termination of this Agreement, Provider shall secure and lock the Safety Device and remove all 

signage provided by SHBB. Provider shall place new visible signage denoting that the Safety 

Device is not functional and that any person desiring to utilize the Safety Device should instead 

contact emergency services. If Provider removes the Safety Device, then it shall make 

arrangements with SHBB for its conveyance or retrieval to SHBB. SHBB shall not be obligated 

to remove the Safety Device; however, at any time after this Agreement has terminated, SHBB 

may, at its sole discretion, notify Provider that it intends to remove and recover the Safety Device. 

Under such circumstances, Provider agrees to cooperate with SHBB in the retrieval of the Safety 

Device, the expenses of which shall be borne by SHBB, so long as expenses do not exceed $500.00 

and unless the termination of this Agreement was effectuated under Section 10 below, in which 

case the cost hereunder shall be borne by Provider. 

 
Section 10. Remedies.   
 

A. Option to Cure. Any uncured breach of this Agreement by Provider, after written notice 
from SHBB to Provider and a thirty (30) day opportunity to cure, shall give SHBB the 
option of immediately terminating this Agreement and retrieving the Safety Device from 
Provider’s facility at Provider’s own cost and expense. If Provider is notified by SHBB 
that the Safety Device is not properly functional or lacks monitoring required by this 
Agreement, then SHBB may order the Safety Device secured and locked until further 
inspection.  Provider shall have thirty (30) days to cure any lack of monitoring or improper 
functioning of the Safety Device.  Such time may be extended by any delay attributable to 
SHBB. If Provider does not cure any lack of monitoring or improper functioning of the 
Safety Device within the initial thirty (30) day period upon SHBB’s review and report, 
Provider may have an additional thirty (30) days to cure any breach.  If Provider fails to 
cure any breach of this Agreement after two (2) attempts to cure as set forth above, SHBB 
may terminate this Agreement if it concludes in its sole discretion that Provider has not 
upheld its obligations under this Agreement. Any breach of this Agreement by Provider 
which has not been cured by Provider within thirty (30) days after notice received from 
SHBB shall give SHBB the option of terminating this Agreement and retrieving the Safety 
Device from Provider’s facility at Provider’s own cost and expense.  
 

B. Attorney’s Fees. Attorneys’ fees, costs, and expenses shall be awarded to the prevailing 

party for any dispute relating to or arising from this Agreement. The term “Prevailing 

Party” shall include, without limitation, a party who substantially obtains or defeats the 

relief sought, as the case may be, whether by compromise, settlement, judgment, or the 

abandonment by the other party of its claim or defense.   

- 15 -

Item # 3.



 
 

Lease and Service Agreement   7 

 

Section 11. Ownership of Safety Device.  Provider agrees and acknowledges that 
ownership of the Safety Device remains with SHBB and this Agreement is merely a services and 
lease agreement. Provider does not have any ownership interest in the Safety Device. Provider 
shall not lease, sell, or otherwise transfer the Safety Device during or after the term of this 
Agreement without the specific written consent of SHBB.  
 

 

 

Section 12. Disclaimer and Limitation of Warranties.  SHBB IS NOT THE 
MANUFACTURER OF THE SAFETY DEVICE AND MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS OR 
WARRANTIES WHATSOEVER, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE SUITABILITY, 
DURABILITY, FITNESS FOR USE, MERCHANTABILITY, CONDITION, QUALITY, 
PERFORMANCE, OR NON-INFRINGEMENT OF THE SAFETY DEVICE. WITH RESPECT 
TO THE SAFETY DEVICE, PROVIDER ACCEPTS IT “AS IS.” THE SAFETY DEVICE 
SHALL BE SUBJECT TO ANY WARRANTIES PROVIDED TO SHBB AND/OR PROVIDER 
BY THE SAFETY DEVICE MANUFACTURER AND/OR AVAILABLE BY THE SAFETY 
DEVICE'S COMPOSITE PARTS.  THERE ARE NO WARRANTIES WHICH EXTEND 
BEYOND THE TERM(S) OF THIS AGREEMENT, UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED OR 
PROVIDED FOR HEREIN OR PROVIDED BY LAW. 

 
SHBB neither assumes nor authorizes any other business organization, entity, or person associated 
or related by legal right, corporate entity, governmental entity, or any other entity associated or 
related by legal right to assume it, or any other liability in connection with the construction, use, 
operation, installment, removal, maintenance, or lease of the Safety Device. There are no 
warranties which extend beyond the terms of this Agreement, unless otherwise stated or provided 
for herein or by law via preemption. These warranties shall not apply to the Safety Device or any 
and all improvements, restoration, repair, remodel, modifications, and/or any other construction 
work on the Safety Device of any kind, related to the Safety Device, or any other part thereof 
which has been subject to accident, negligence, alteration, abuse, use or misuse of same which are 
not approved of by SHBB and/or agreed to by SHBB. SHBB makes no warranty whatsoever with 
respect to accessories or parts not supplied by it. 
 

Section 13. Notice.  Any notices requests, demands, waivers and other communications 
given as provided in this Agreement will be in writing and will be deemed to have been given if 
delivered in person (including by Federal Express or other personal delivery service), or mailed 
by certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, and addressed to at the following addresses:   
 

 
 
Notice to SHBB:  Monica Kelsey  

 P.O. Box 185 
Woodburn, IN 46797  

  
Notice to Provider:  _________________ 
    _________________ 
    _________________ 
    _________________ 

- 16 -

Item # 3.



 
 

Lease and Service Agreement   8 

 
Any such notice sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt, shall be deemed to have 

been duly given and received seventy-two (72) hours after the same is so addressed and mailed 
with postage prepaid. Notice sent by recognized overnight delivery service shall be effective only 
upon actual receipt thereof at the office of the addressee set forth above, and any such notice 
delivered at a time outside of normal business hours shall be deemed effective at the opening of 
business on the next business day. Any party may change its address for purposes of this paragraph 
by giving notice to the other party as herein provided. Delivery of any copies as provided herein 
shall not constitute delivery of notice hereunder.  

 
Section 14. Assignability. This Agreement is binding and benefits the successors and 

assignees of the Provider, which includes any and all originations/entities or persons with which 
the Provider may dilute, merge or consolidate, or to which it may transfer substantially all of its 
assets or equity interests.  Provider shall not transfer or assign this Agreement, however, without 
the specific written consent of SHBB, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

 
Section 15.  Governing Law/Jurisdiction. The validity, interpretation, construction, and 

performance of this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of Mississippi and Mississippi 
courts. Should any dispute arise out of or relating to this Agreement and any of its incorporated 
parts, Parties agree that said dispute may exclusively be litigated in state or federal court in of the 
State of Mississippi. Each Party waives, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the defense of an 
inconvenient forum to the maintenance of such action or proceeding in any such court. Each Party 
agrees and acknowledges that any term not defined herein shall be construed to have its every-day, 
contextual meaning as defined in the latest editions of the Merriam Webster Dictionary, and if a 
legal term, Black’s Law Dictionary; and should any term, condition, or provision of this 
Agreement be deemed vague, ambiguous, or confusing, it shall not be construed in favor of either 
Party. 

 
Section 16. Integration/Entire Agreement. This Agreement, along with the attached 

Exhibits hereto represents the entire expression of the final agreement of the parties and supersedes 
all previous and contemporaneous communications or agreement regarding the subject matter 
hereof. Provider by its signature below hereby acknowledges that Provider agrees to be bound by 
the terms and conditions and policies and procedures set forth in this Agreement as may be updated 
from time to time and agreed to in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.  Any additional 
terms or conditions contained in purchase orders or other forms not incorporated into this 
Agreement are expressly rejected by Provider and shall not be binding, unless Provider agrees to 
them in a writing signed by both parties.  
 

Section 17. No Oral Modification.  No change, modification, extension, termination, or 
waiver of this Agreement or any of its incorporated documents or parts, or any of the provisions 
contained, will be valid unless made in writing and signed by duly authorized representative of the 
parties. 
 
 Section 18. Waiver. No waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be valid 
and enforceable unless such waiver is in writing and signed by the parties to be charged and, unless 
otherwise stated, no such waiver shall constitute a waiver of any other provision or a continuing 
waiver. 
 

- 17 -

Item # 3.



 
 

Lease and Service Agreement   9 

Section 19.  Severability.  In the event that one or more of the provisions of this Agreement 
shall become invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, the validity, legality and 
enforceability of the remaining provisions contained shall not be affected as a whole. 
 

Section 20.  Time of the Essence. The Parties expressly recognize that time is of the 
essence in the performance of their respective obligations under this Agreement and that each Party 
is relying on the timely performance by the other Party and will schedule operations and incur 
obligations to third parties in reliance upon timely performance by the other party. 

 
Section 21.  Tort Claims Immunity. Provider shall be subject in all cases to the 

immunities, provisions and limitations of the Mississippi Tort Claims Act §11-46-11. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed and be 

effective on the date first written above.   
 

 

 
 
Safe Haven Baby Boxes, Inc. 
 
 
By:      

Monica Kelsey, Founder/CEO 
Safe Haven Baby Box, Inc. 

 
 
 
Provider 

 
City of Long Beach Mississippi 
 
 
By:      
 

- 18 -

Item # 3.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Brad Robinson, Fire Chief 

DATE April 16, 2024 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF  MONETARY DONATION FOR SAFE HAVEN BABY 

BOX 
  

 

Request:  

We are asking the City Council to accept this Donation in the amount up to $22,500.00, to cover 

the costs associated with the Safe Haven Baby Box. This Donation is from a group of Citizens 

that have been working hard to get this started through donations from organizations, such as 

AFA (American Family Association), Hope Church, Tommy Morgan Realtors and Lawndale 

Presbyterian Church. This donation will cover the costs of the Safe Have Baby Box including 

signage, a provider kit, delivery fees for the baby box and annual fees for Inspection as detailed 

on Exhibit B document.  

 

- 19 -

Item # 4.



- 20 -

Item # 4.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Missy Shelton, Council Clerk 

DATE April 29, 2024 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF APRIL 16, 2024 

COUNCIL MEETING 
  

 

Request:  

For your review and approval. 

 

- 21 -

Item # 5.



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MUNICIPAL MINUTES CITY OF TUPELO 

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI 

APRIL 16, 2024 

Be it remembered that a regular meeting of the Tupelo City Council was held in the Council Chambers 

in the City Hall building on Tuesday, April 19, 2024, at 6:00 p.m. with the following in attendance: 

Council Members Chad Mims, Lynn Bryan, Travis Beard, Nettie Davis, Buddy Palmer, Janet Gaston 

and Rosie Jones; Ben Logan, City Attorney and Missy Shelton, Clerk of the Council. Council Member 

Janet Gaston gave the invocation, and Council Member Buddy Palmer led the pledge of allegiance.  

Council President Travis Beard called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

CONFIRMATION OR AMENDMENT TO THE AGENDA AND AGENDA ORDER 

Council Member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member Bryan, to approve the agenda and agenda 

order, with an addition, as follows: 

Add Item # 12  In the Matter of Rejection of Bid # 2024-011FD – Truck and Tahoe 

The vote was unanimous in favor. 

PUBLIC RECOGNITION 

Council Member Nettie Davis asked everyone to be in prayer for the family of Cliff Brinkley, a former 

employee of the City of Tupelo. She also mentioned that there are several participants in the Boston 

Marathon from our area. 

MAYOR'S REMARKS 

Mayor Todd Jordan announced that the Downtown Main Street Association (DTMSA) recently received 

the 2024 Bernice Linton Outstanding Event Pinnacle Award for the Tupelo Elvis Festival. Keep Tupelo 

Beautiful also received a state award. Softball and soccer tournaments will be going on in Tupelo this 

weekend. 

IN THE MATTER OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR THE AMENDMENT AND RESTATEMENT 

OF 2004 TUPELO COMMONS TIF PLAN AS THE APRIL 2024 AMENDED AND RESTATED 

PLAN 

No one appeared concerning this public hearing. APPENDIX A 

IN THE MATTER OF MINUTES OF COUNCIL MEETING ON APRIL 2, 2024 

- 22 -

Item # 5.



Council Member Palmer moved, seconded by Council Member Gaston to approve the minutes of the 

April 2, 2024, Council meeting. The vote was unanimous in favor. 

IN THE MATTER OF BILL PAY  

Bills were reviewed at 4:30 p.m. by Council Members Travis Beard, Buddy Palmer, Janet Gaston, Lynn 

Bryan and Nettie Davis. Council Member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member Bryan, to 

approve the payment of the checks, bills, claims and utility adjustments.  The vote was unanimous in 

favor. APPENDIX B 

IN THE MATTER OF ADVERTISING AND PROMOTIONAL ITEMS  

Council Member Bryan moved, seconded by Council Member Mims, to approve the advertising and 

promotional items, as follows: 

  ITEMS: 

  Various Vendors $5,000.00    Assist with expenses for the Dr. Lee Williams Legacy Fest 

The vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX C 

IN THE MATTER OF THE CITY OF TUPELO AUDIT FOR FY 2023  

The Jarrell Group, PLLC, conducted the annual audit of the city’s financial condition.  No current year 

deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control or in the compliance system were reported. 

Council Member Bryan moved, seconded by Council Member Gaston, to accept the City of Tupelo 

Audit for fiscal year ending September 30, 2023. A copy of the audit report is on file in the City Clerk's 

office. The vote was unanimous in favor. 

IN THE MATTER OF THE 2023 CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

Council Member Bryan moved, seconded by Council Member Davis, to accept the Continuing 

Disclosure Statement prepared by Butler Snow for FY 2023.  City Attorney Ben Logan explained that 

the Electronic Municipal Market Access, (EMMA), requires a yearly statement from any entity with 

outstanding bond debt. The vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX D 

IN THE MATTER OF SURPLUSING WEAPON FOR RETIREMENT  

Police Chief John Quaka asked that the service weapon of Alan Chavers - Glock Model 47 Direct 

Mount, 9mm -  serial number CBYM864, be surplused and sold to him at fair market value, upon his 

retirement. Fair market value of the weapon is $250 and is permissible under Mississippi State Stature 

§45-9-131. APPENDIX E 

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF CONTRACT FOR GUMTREE AND HANCOCK 

PARKS UPGRADES - BID #2024-006PR 

Bid # 2024-006PR – Gumtree and Hancock Parks Upgrades was awarded at the April 2, 2024, Council 

meeting. Council Member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member Jones, to approve the contract 

for this project with M & N Construction, LLC in the amount of $1,166,800.00. APPENDIX F 

- 23 -

Item # 5.



IN THE MATTER OF MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 16, 2023 TUPELO REDEVELOPMENT 

AGENCY 

Council Member Palmer moved, seconded by Council Member Mims, to accept the Tupelo 

Redevelopment Agency (TRA) minutes of November 16, 2023. The vote was unanimous in favor. 

APPENDIX G 

IN THE MATTER OF A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ADOPTION AND 

IMPLEMENTATION OF THE “TAX INCREMENT FINANCING PLAN, TUPELO 

COMMONS PROJECT, TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI, FEBRUARY 2004, AS AMENDED AND 

RESTATED APRIL 2024” 

Council Member Gaston moved, seconded by Council Member Davis, to approve the ‘Resolution 

Approving the Adoption and Implementation of the “Tax Increment Financing Plan, Tupelo Commons 

Project, Tupelo, Mississippi, February, 2004, as Amended and Restated April, 2024”’. The vote was 

unanimous in favor. APPENDIX H 

IN THE MATTER OF ORDER FINDING THAT INSTEAD OF COMPETITIVE SEALED 

BIDS, THAT COMPETITIVE SEALED REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 

PROCUREMENT SHOULD BE USED TO CONTRACT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE 

BALLARD PARK INCLUSIVE PLAYGROUND  

Council Member Bryan moved, seconded by Council member Gaston, to approve an “Order Finding 

that Instead of Competitive Sealed Bids, that Competitive Sealed Request for Proposals (RFP) 

Procurement Should Be Used to Contract for the Construction of the Ballard Park Inclusive 

Playground”. The vote was unanimous in favor. APPENDIX I 

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL FOR A SAFE HAVEN BABY BOX AT FIRE STATION 3 

The Council unanimously agreed to move this item up. 

IN THE MATTER OF MONETARY DONATION FOR SAFE HAVEN BABY BOX 

The Council unanimously agreed to move this item up. 

IN THE MATTER OF DEVELOPMENT CODE AMENDMENT – SIGNS (MOVED TO STUDY 

AGENDA ON FEBRUARY 20, 2024)  

The Council unanimously agreed to leave this item on the study agenda. 

IN THE MATTER OF DEVELOPMENT CODE AMENDMENTS TA-23-01  

The Council unanimously agreed to leave this item on the study agenda. 

 

- 24 -

Item # 5.



EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Council Member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member Jones, to determine the need for an 

executive session. City Attorney Ben Logan said the session will be for the possible purchase of 

property under Miss. Code Anno. § 25-41-7 (g) (1972 as amended).  The vote was unanimous in favor. 

 

Council Member Bryan moved, seconded by Council Member Jones, to close the regular session and 

enter executive session for discussion of the possible purchase of property under Miss. Code Anno. § 

25-41-7 (g) (1972 as amended).   

 

After discussion in executive session, Council Member Davis moved, seconded by Council Member 

Bryan, to return to the regular meeting at 6:26 p.m. The vote was unanimous in favor. 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

There being no further business to come before the Council at this time, Council Member Jones moved, 

seconded by Council Member Gaston, to adjourn the meeting at 6:27 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

       __________________________________________ 

       Travis Beard, Council President 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Missy Shelton, Council Clerk 

 

       APPROVED 

 

 

       __________________________________________ 

       Todd Jordan, Mayor 

 

       __________________________________________ 

       Date 

 

 

 

 

  

 

- 25 -

Item # 5.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Kim Hanna, CFO/City Clerk 

DATE April 29, 2024 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF BILL PAY KH 
  

 

Request:  

For your review and approval. 

 

Chad Mims 

Buddy Palmer 

Rosie Jones 

 

- 26 -

Item # 6.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Kim Hanna, CFO 

DATE May 7, 2024 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF ADVERTISING AND PROMOTIONAL ITEMS KH 
  

 

Request:  

Proposed items for approval are for the purpose of advertising and bringing into favorable notice 

the opportunities, possibilities and resources of the City of Tupelo.  

 

ITEMS: 

MS Radio Group $299     Memorial Day Ads from City of Tupelo 

MS Radio Group $299  July 4th Ads from City of Tupelo 

 

- 27 -

Item # 7.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Kim Hanna, CFO 

DATE May 7, 2024 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF THE 2025 BUDGET CALENDAR KH 
  

 

Request:  

I am requesting the approval of the 2025 Budget Calendar. 

 

ATTACHED: 

2025 Budget Calendar 

 

 

- 28 -

Item # 8.



PROPOSED BUDGET CALENDAR 

FY 2025 

 
Date    Process 
 

May Distribute departmental request forms and notification of due 

date 

 

June 14 Deadline for return of department request to the Finance 

Department 

 

July    Revenue Projection (Section 21-35-5) 

 

July 17 & 24 Publish notice twice for Public Hearing on Budget 

 

August 6 Hold Public Hearing on Budget (Section 21-35-5) 

 

August 12 - 30 Hold Budget Planning Sessions (To be determined by the 

Council) 

 

August 12 - 16 Review anticipated Tax Levy to determine whether public notice 

is required for any levy 

 

August 21 & 28 Publish notice of Public Hearing on Tax Levy for two weeks 

prior to adoption of the budget 

 

September 3 Hold Public Hearing on Tax Levy (Section 27-39-203) 

 

September 3 Adopt Lee County Tax Assessment Rolls (No later than 

9/15/2024) (Section 21-33-45) 

 

September 12 Set Tax Levy necessary to support adopted budget (No later than 

9/15/2024) (Section 21-33-45) 

 

September 12 Adopt Budget (No later than 9/15/2024) (Code Section 21-35-9) 

 

September 13 Deliver Tax Levy to Lee County Tax Assessor (No later than 

9/15/2024) (Code Section 21-33-45) 

 

September 13 Deliver Tax Levy to State Department of Revenue (No later than 

9/15/2024) (Code Section 21-33-47) 

 

September 17 Resolution of Fireman Fund for FY 2025 

 

September 18 – 25 Give Public Notice of availability of budget for inspection by 

9/30/2024 

 

September - 25 Publish adopted budget (Code Section 21-35-5) 

 

October 1 Approve Municipal Compliance Questionnaire (State 

Department of Audit) 

- 29 -

Item # 8.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Tanner Newman, Director of Development Services 

DATE May 7, 2024 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF REVIEW/ACCEPT PLANNING COMMITTEE 

MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 5, 2024 TN 
  

 

Request:  

Review and approve attached minutes of the Tupelo Planning Committee meeting held February 

5, 2024. 

 

 

 

- 30 -

Item # 9.



MINUTES OF  

THE TUPELO PLANNING COMMITTEE 

FEBRUARY REGULAR MEETING  

Monday, February 5, 2024  

6:00 PM Cadence Arena 

 

CALL TO ORDER  

Chair Lindsey Leake called the meeting to order. Committee members Scott Davis, Patti 

Thompson, Leslie Mart, Victor Fleitas, Mark Williams, Lindsey Leake, Bentley Nolan, and 

Pam Hadley were present. Gus Hildenbrand was absent. Staff members present were City 

Planner Jenny Savely. Chair Leake asked Bentley Nolan to open with a prayer and Victor 

Fleitas to lead the pledge. Chair Leake then presented an opening statement of the committee 

purpose and reviewed how the committee would conduct its business.  The Staff and 

Committee were then asked to introduce themselves and did so. 

 

Review of Minutes 

There was no meeting in January 2024 and the December 2023 minutes were not available 

for review. Jenny apologized for the oversite and stated that the Zoning Administrator, Russ 

Wilson usually prepared the minutes, but that he had retired. The staff and committee send 

best wishes in his future endeavors. 

 

Report on Council Actions 

Jenny reported that the city council will hear the Major Site plan for Magnolia Grove, and 

they will finalize the text amendments to multifamily and congregate living tomorrow 

evening. 

 

No Old Business 

 New Business 

First Item: MAJSUB24-01 MAJOR SUBDIVISION, COMPATIBLE USE 

 

Chair Leake asked for the staff analysis. Jenny Savely stated that yes, it is a two-part decision 

by the planning committee, and we have combined what is typically not a planning committee 

hearing with this hearing because all major subdivisions require planning committee 

approval. This is a 26-lot single family home subdivision situated almost at the intersection 

of Mount Vernon and McCullough. There is a new development there facing McCullough. 

This would be behind that and not seen from McCullough. Entry will be on Mount Vernon 

Road just north of that intersection. The decision before the planning is approval of the 

preliminary plat which includes several items that the developer and engineer has submitted 

to us as well as a compatible use approval for single family homes. This is in a mixed-use 

Commercial Corridor zoning district because the parcel is technically in the zoning district 

- 31 -

Item # 9.



right along McCullough it is zoned for the same uses there, however residential uses are 

permitted. But by what we refer to as compatibility meaning typically this would be the 

compatible use of this approval among the property owners 500 feet and we would invite 

them to a hearing to hear from them and provide feedback to whatever relevant to the 

proposal. This is a mixed use typically housing there would be denser, zero lot line, tighter 

less acreage per parcel development. However, because this is different from that, we are 

doing compatible use, we are going to put it in front of the Planning Committee, there are 

some members of the public here tonight as we did send notices as thought it were a 

compatible use and invited you to come tonight instead of da middle of the day for a 

compatible use hearing. That said, we are recommending approval of the compatible use as 

well as the plat itself. This is an interesting location that does bring residential development 

that is larger acreage along Mount Vernon Road and in subdivisions north of McCullough. 

It's the same type of use. The lots here are about a 1/4 to 3/4 acre, varied throughout the 

subdivision to work with the topography. The engineer has done a great job working with 

the topography there and the drainage and preventing site lines to commercial development 

from the residential properties. That said, the presentation here, the setbacks are important 

to look at. Setbacks are 30 feet and 10 feet from the side. There will be lots that sit back off 

the road and not right on top of the sidewalk. This will be a very livable, walkable 

community, encouraging front porch living and folks getting to know their neighbors. 

Because there are only 26 lots. We don't anticipate and negative traffic impact to Mount 

Vernon and the drainage has been worked with engineering and public works Street will be 

dedicated to the city. They have sidewalks throughout the development as well as open space 

on the southern portion and the northern portion. I believe the southern portion is intended 

to have a walking trail with maybe a natural surface on that. Everything else meets our 

standards. We are recommending this because it is a unique parcel and a unique location, 

the city needs housing that is walkable residential development. We do see it as a positive 

development for the city generally. You have the previous plat that was proposed with 

acreage for each lot as well as the updated plat that shows the open space and the cluster 

mailbox at the immediate entry on the south side. 

 

The applicants Chip & Debbie Waterer stated they live at 415 CR 430 Houlka at the east 

side of the Natchez Trace. In 1990 they bought Hydro Hose and started a company called 

Huntington Fabrics. They watched Dr. Campbell, a retired dentist, who had horses, ponies, 

and a few cattle. He had lots of trees, pine trees and a pecan grove on the west side. The 

property became available, and they bought it a couple of years ago. They envisioned a front 

porch community for downsizers. They don't want to change anything. They want to keep 

the oak trees and pecan trees, leaving the topography as natural as possible. There is a big 

deer population on it right now and a few turkeys. They plan sidewalks and a nature trail 

around the creek and possibly tie into the Natchez Trace Trail. One way in and one way out 

ensures the safety of the residents. 

- 32 -

Item # 9.



 

The meeting was opened for the committee to ask questions: 

Bentley asked if there would be a HOA. The applicant answered that they are developing it 

as they go along. They would like to present it to the planning committee for advice on 

tweaking it. 

Leslie asked if there was a pond on the property. The applicant answered that there was, but 

it really didn't hold water, an old levy, perhaps a beaver or muskrat got into it. It was a spot 

for watering Dr. Campbell's horse. It has been filled in and MDEQ paperwork has been 

completed. Leslie asked about green space. The plat shows it by the words Mount Vernon. 

Jenny stated that there is some open space by the road on the southern portion of the new 

plat. The developer mentioned that there might be some development in the open space for 

commercial development. To meet the 10% requirement for open space we plan to work on 

that during construction and negotiate that open space as they develop that site plan.  Leslie 

asked about the space that turns down Mount Vernon for the entrance to the new 

development. Is it your plan to do some commercial development eventually there? We got 

the approval from MDOT, that owns that little weird little platting there. We would like to 

put something kind of catty-cornered to face both Mount Vernon and McCullough. We had 

someone look at it and it appears to be 4 to 5 thousand square feet, but we don't want to 

disturb the pecan trees. Leslie asked if the department would take into consideration the 

calculations of space not including what is future commercial. The deal is if we right now 

define that open space, then it is open space in perpetuity, it would be in the deed for that 

parcel. We wanted to let them work on where the commercial will be and then the remaining 

acreage will be parceled off as open space. Scott asked about future connections, will that be 

a possible road as you come in on the right? The applicant replied that there is Mount Vernon 

Chapel there and that is the old existing driveway that Dr. Campbell had going back to his 

tennis courts with a two room shack that his manager lived. We left it because it is so scenic 

with pecan trees on both sides. That will be an access road. Leslie asked if that is on the 

original plat. Jenny said it is on the new plat. The one at the entry way was for a possible 

retail space but they are not going to do it. 

 Jenny asked if that drive would connect back to the funeral home. The applicant stated that 

it would. He said that he has a permit from MDOT to make this wider entrance going in 

before you get to Mount Vernon.  Scott asked if that future connection would go to the 

chapel?  The applicant answered yes, it would. Scott asked on the southern part does the 

sidewalk stop and not continue back to the main road It looks like it wraps all the way around 

and stops as it turns back north. He asked what the reason was for not taking it back to the 

main road. The applicant replied it was less concrete, greener, more yard.  Jenny added that 

because the stopping of how that main inlet comes in still meets the sidewalk requirements. 

 

The Chair opened the public portion of the meeting and there were no respondents. 

 

- 33 -

Item # 9.



The Chair opened the committee discussion. 

Leslie asked about the radius of the cul-de-sac. Could emergency vehicles navigate the 

curvature? Jenny stated that it was submitted to the Fire Marshall. He is reviewing it and 

making minor changes as needed. She didn't think it would change the plat significantly if 

he had any changes at all. They will address that in the construction documents, a very minor 

change, if any is needed. Leslie asked about the mailbox location. Jenny said it is on the 

southern open section and it is very small near a parallel parking area at the termination of 

the sidewalk. Victor asked if assuming an approval, is that something we need to stipulate as 

part of any approval or is that taken care of by city staff. Jenny said it would be taken care 

of by city staff during construction. 

 

Scott made the motion to approve the preliminary plat and approve the proposal. 

Seconded by Victor. 

 

The motion passed unanimously.  

Jenny informed the applicant of the next steps. 

 

The next work session is February 26th with a public meeting on March 4th. We have several 

applications for March. Hope to be in council quarters for the March meeting. 

 

Meeting  adjourned. 

 

- 34 -

Item # 9.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Tanner Newman, Director of Development Services 

DATE May 7, 2024 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF REVIEW/APPROVE LIEN RESOLUTION FOR 

UNPAID PROPERTY CLEANING COSTS TN 
  

 

Request:  

Please review and approve the attached Resolution Adjudicating Cost and Assessing Lien 

Against Real Property under MISS.CODE ANN. §21-19-11 (1972) AS AMENDED for the 

following property: 

 

 

Address Parcel # 

2281 EDGEMONT 

DRIVE 

076K-23-041-00 

 

 

- 35 -

Item # 10.



BEFORE THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF  

THE CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

 

CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI                        LIENOR 

 

VS.                           CASE NO.  37348 

 

KATHY BARNETT AND                OWNER  

ROBERT CLARK BARNETT   

    

RESOLUTION ADJUDICATING COST AND ASSESSING LIEN AGAINST REAL PROPERTY UNDER 

MISS. CODE ANN. 21-19-11 (1972) AS AMENDED 

 

1.  Pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. §21-19-11 (1972), as amended, the City of Tupelo gave notice of a 

public hearing before the governing authorities of the City of Tupelo to KATHY BARNETT AND ROBERT 

CLARK BARNETT (Owner of the property described herein below) to determine whether the real property described 

herein below was in such a state of uncleanliness as to be a menace to the public health, safety and welfare of the 

community.  

 

Property Owner:  KATHY BARNETT AND  

   ROBERT CLARK BARNETT 

  

Address of Owner: 2281 EDGEMONT DRIVE 

 TUPELO, MS  38804 

 

Parcel Number:  076K-23-041-00 

 

Address of Violation:    2281 EDGEMONT DRIVE 

 

 2.  The hearing was held before the Mayor and City Council of the City of Tupelo on 06/06/2023 

following which the property referenced above was found to be a menace to the public health and safety, and the 

property was ordered to be cleaned immediately.  Subsequent to this date, and in accordance with Miss. Code Ann. 

§21-19-11 (1972), as amended, the City of Tupelo proceeded to have the structure(s) demolished.    

 

 3. Pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. §21-19-11 (1972, as amended), City of Tupelo shall charge Owner 

with the actual cost of demolition, including administrative and legal costs of the municipality, and may also impose 

a penalty of one-half of the actual cost or $1500.00, whichever is more.   

 

 4. The City of Tupelo, by and through its council, at a regularly scheduled meeting held on 05/07/2023, 

adjudicated the actual cost of second cleaning to be $495.00.  This amount is assessed as a lien on the real property 

described above. 

 

5. This Resolution will be enrolled as a judgment lien on the Lee County, Mississippi judgment roll in 

the office of the Circuit Clerk of Lee County, Mississippi.  If unpaid prior to the 30th day of September of the current 

year, this lien shall be satisfied by having the amount of this lien included with municipal ad valorem taxes and 

payment shall be enforced in the same manner in which payment is enforced for municipal ad valorem taxes. Failure 

to pay this assessment shall require the tax collector to sell the land as now provided by law for the sale of lands for 

delinquent municipal taxes. Liens filed after September 30th of the current year, and unpaid by September 30th of the 

subsequent year shall be collected as a part of the subsequent year’s municipal ad valorem taxes, in the same manner 

as provided herein. The lien against the property shall be an encumbrance upon the property and shall follow title of 

the property 

 

6. Prior to its collection as a judgment lien, this assessment may otherwise be collected as a civil debt, 

and the City of Tupelo may institute a suit on open account against the owner of the property in a court of competent 

jurisdiction in the manner provided by law for the cost and any penalty, plus court costs, reasonable attorney's fees 

- 36 -

Item # 10.



and interest from the date that the property was cleaned. Pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. § 27-41-9 (1972, as amended), 

an interest charge of one-half of one percent (1/2 of 1%) will accrue monthly on all unpaid liens. 

 

7. The Director of Development Services is hereby directed to cause a copy of this Resolution to be 

mailed to the owner advising of the assessment of a lien against the property, and the Owner’s right to appeal under 

Miss. Code Ann §11-51-75 (1972, as amended). 

 

WHEREUPON, the foregoing Resolution was declared passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 

Council of Tupelo, Mississippi, on this, the 7th day of May, 2024.  

 

 

               CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

 

 

 

      BY: ________________________________ 

             TRAVIS BEARD, Council President  

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

MISSY SHELTON, Clerk of the Council   

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

 

     ____________________________________ 

     TODD JORDAN., Mayor 

      

____________________________________ 

     Date 

- 37 -

Item # 10.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Tanner Newman, Director of Development Services 

DATE May 2, 2024 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF MISSISSIPPI STATE DEPARTMENT 

OF HEALTH GRANT APPLICATION AWARD FOR FORMATION OF THE 

MAYOR’S HEALTH COUNCIL TN 
  

 

Request:  

Approval to submit grant application forms: Questionnaire, W-9 Form, and Conflict of Interest 

Form to the MS Department of Health. The Mississippi State Department of Health has received 

grant funds to support a Community Health Needs Assessment in Tupelo. By participating in the 

needs assessment, the City will receive $5,000 of unobligated funds and be recognized for the 

formation of a Mayor's Health Council, which will make non-profit programming supporting 

community health initiatives eligible for millions of dollars of Federal, State, Local, and private 

grant funds. The Mayor's Health Council represents an exploratory committee aiming at 

examining social determinants of health and preventative possibilities to assist in reducing 

negative community health outcomes. 

- 38 -

Item # 11.



Sub-Grantee Questionnaire 
This questionnaire gathers preliminary details required prior to the routing and awarding of grant 

funds from the Office of Community Health Improvement with the Mississippi State Department of 

Health. 

Sub-Grantee Information 

Subgrantee/Organization Name: __ City of Tupelo _________________ _ 

Street Address: _71 East Troy Street, Tupelo, MS 38804 ________________ _ 

Post Office Box: PO Box 1485 Tupelo MS 38802 
--- --- ---------------

City: _Tupelo __________ _ State:_MS_ 

EIN: 64-6001140 uE1: DK 9PFM6XSDR7

Email Address: __ abby.christian@tupeloms.gov ________________ _ 

Telephone: _662 __ - _687 __ - _ 4269 __ _ 

Mayor: _Todd Jordan ____________ Phone: _662-231-9181. ______ _ 

Email Address: __ todd.jordan@tupeloms.gov ________________ _ 

Fiscal Director/Accountant: Kim Hanna _________ Phone: _662-401-6993 ___ _ 

Email Address: _____ kim.hanna@tupeloms.gov _______________ _ 

Sub-Grant Contact Person, Title: _Jenny Savely, City Planner _____ Phone: _662-208-5063_ 

Email Address: ___jenny.savely@tupeloms.gov _________________ _ 

Sub-Grant Information 

Sub-Grant Title: ___ Mayor's Health Council ________________ _ 

Description: Establish a coalttion to assess community health related to prevention. diversion, and 

health disparities and provide community engagement opportunities for assessment data and education 

as well as establishing interest. The coalition will establish a Mayor's Health Council of stakeholders in 

organizations with shared goals as the coalition. Outcomes may include development of a sustainability 

plan through policy reformation, established funding sources for identified prevention and diversion 

projects, ongoing collaboration through continuation of the Mayor's Health Council, and continued 

networking with other industry sectors addressing social determinants of health. 

Start Date: _May 8, 2024 ______ _ End Date: _August 31, 2024 ____ _ 

Dates are Tentative 

Total Sub-grant Amount: _$5,000.00 _____ Payment Basis: Monthly (Or Upon Completion of 
Activities) 

Payment Verification 

W9 Completed? 0 X Ye0 No 

Review page 2 and complete the process for MAGIC and Paymode if incomplete before returning 

questionnaire by the identified due date above. - 39 -

Item # 11.



- 40 -

Item # 11.



Mississippi State Department of Health Form 1244
Revision: 08/07/2023

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

(Please attach additional pages, as needed, to address each question) 

1. List all other current agreements/contracts with MSDH, including the dollar amount
associated with the agreement/contract and the beginning and ending dates. If no other funds
are received, please mark N/A.

MSDH Program Name Dollar Amount Beginning Date Ending Date 

2. Please list the name of each member of your organization’s Board of Directors or other
governing body (i.e., trustee, alderman, partner, owner).

3. Are any members of the governing body or project staff also MSDH employees, MSDH
Board Members, or spouses, parents, or children of MSDH employees? ○ Yes ○ No

If yes, please complete the following: 

Name MSDH Board 
Member/MSDH 

Employee/Relative 

Position held with 
MSDH 

NONE

TODD JORDAN, MAYOR
TRAVIS BEARD, CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT, WARD 3

CHAD MIMS, WARD 1
LYNN BRYAN, WARD 2
NETTIE DAVIS, WARD 4
BUDDY PALMER, WARD 5

JANET GASTON, WARD 6
ROSIE JONES, WARD 7

- 41 -

Item # 11.



Mississippi State Department of Health  Form 1244
  Revision: 08/07/2023 

4. If you answered yes to #3, please answer the following: 
 

i. Does the MSDH Board Member, Employee, or Relative receive more than 
$2,500.00 per year in income from the business? ○ Yes ○ No 

ii. Does the MSDH Board Member, Employee, or Relative own ten (10%) percent or 
more of the fair market value in the business, either directly or indirectly through 
another business? ○ Yes ○ No 

iii. Does the MSDH Board Member, Employee, or Relative have ownership interest in 
the business, in which the fair market value exceeds $5,000.00? ○ Yes ○ No 

iv. Is the MSDH Board Member, Employee, or Relative a director, officer, or employee 
of the business? ○ Yes  No 
 

I hereby certify that the information set forth above is true and complete to the best of my 
knowledge and that no MSDH employee, spouse, parent, or child of an MSDH employee, serves 
as a member of the governing body, project staff, or has an ownership or pecuniary interest in the 
agreement/contract or organization. I agree to notify MSDH within thirty (30) days if any of these 
conditions change during the agreement/contract.  

 

______________________________________    _______________________________________ 

Name                          Title 
 
 
_____________________________________    _______________________________________ 

Signature                         Date 
 

 

- 42 -

Item # 11.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Tanner Newman, Director of Development Services 

DATE May 7, 2024 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF AN ORDER AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF 

REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 200 DOZIER STREET AND 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO ENTER INTO A 

CONTRACT FOR PURCHASE TN 
  

 

Request:  

Approve the purchase of 200 Dozier Street in the amount of $49,500 for the purpose of 

blight removal.  

- 43 -

Item # 12.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: John Quaka, Chief 

DATE April 26, 2024 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF REJECTING REVERSE BID #2024-014PD -  TWO 1500 

CHEVROLET SILVERADO CREW CAB TRUCKS (SSV) JQ   
  

 

Request:  

 Please accept this letter of request to reject Bid #2024-014PD. There were 2 unpriced 

submissions for Two (2) new 1500 Chevrolet Silverado’s Crew Cab Trucks (SSV). Neither 

submission met the required specifications. Due to the unpriced submissions, the Reverse Bid 

Process will need to be resubmitted in order to solicit additional vendors to participate.   

 

 

- 44 -

Item # 13.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Chief John Quaka  

DATE April 30, 2024 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE ADDITION OF ITEM REMOVED 

FROM ASSET LIST AT NORTH MS NARCOTICS UNIT JQ 
Q  

 

Request:  

The following item was added to the surplus list on November 21, 2023, in error: 

 LVO TS M800 computer (S/N: 1S10FW003DUSMJ05BYJX; asset #5729)  

Please add the item back to the NMNU asset list. 

 

 

- 45 -

Item # 14.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Chief John Quaka 

DATE April 30, 2024 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING SEIZED VEHICLE TO NMNU ASSET 

LIST JQ 
  

 

Request: Please add the following seized vehicle to NMNU asset list: white 2016 Chevrolet 

Tahoe; vin #1GNSKBKC8GR132362. 

 

 

- 46 -

Item # 15.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Quaka, John Chief 

DATE May 2, 2024 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF NMNU SURPLUS JQ 
  

 

Request: Please remove the following vehicle from the NMNU asset list and add to the NMNU 

surplus list; gold 2004 Chevrolet Venture van; vin #1GNDX03E24D177921. This vehicle is not 

functional and will be sold at auction. 

 

 

- 47 -

Item # 16.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Brad Robinson, Fire Chief 

DATE May 7, 2024 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF SURPLUS OF TWO FIRE APPARATUS FOR SALE BR 
  

 

Request:  

The Fire Department needs City Council to surplus (2) two old Fire Apparatus to sell in a bid. 

The description of the two Fire Apparatus are: 

 1993 E-One Cyclone Pumper Vin #4ENAAAA88P1002501 

 1998 E-One 100’ Ladder Truck Vin #4ENSABA89W1008915 

 

- 48 -

Item # 17.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: RHONDA COLE 

DATE MAY 1, 2024 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF SURPLUS 2009 NISSAN VERSA FOR AUCTION – 

MUNICIPAL COURT RC 
  

 

Request:  

 Surplus Asset # 3052 for a 2009 Nissan Versa Serial # 3N1BC11E69L440503. 

 

- 49 -

Item # 18.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Kevan Kirkpatrick, Director Cadence Bank Arena  

DATE April 17, 2024 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF CADENCE BANK ARENA MINUTES 

OF MARCH 18, 2024 KK 
  

 

Request:  

PLEASE REVIEW AND ACCEPT MINUTES OF MARCH 18, 2024  

 

- 50 -

Item # 19.



- 51 -

Item # 19.



- 52 -

Item # 19.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Johnny Timmons, Manager TW&L 

DATE April 24, 2024 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF SURPLUS ITEM  JT  
  

 

Request:  

Surplus and remove the following item from our fixed asset list: 

 

 Pipehorn Ferromagnetic Locator, S/N 4502647, ID # 1289 

 

This item no longer works and has been used for spare parts to repair other locators. 

 

 

- 53 -

Item # 20.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Johnny Timmons, Manager TW&L 

DATE April 22, 2024 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF AWARD OF BID # 2023-065WL FOR THE LABOR 

AND MATERIALS AT THE NORTH GREEN STREET SUBSTATION JT  
  

 

Request:  

 

I recommend the following bid award for consideration at your regular meeting on Tuesday, May 

7, 2024: 

 

Bid No. 2023-065WL – Labor and materials for the North Green Street Substation to the low 

qualified bid submitted by Power Grid Company in the amount of $2,130,000.00 as recommended 

by Allen & Hoshall Engineers.   

 

 

 Complete List of Bidders: 

 Power Grid Company  $2,130,000 

 Garnet Electric  $2,317,600 

 Groves Electrical Services $2,698,288 

 Service Electric Company $2,850,000 

 Aubrey Silvey   $2,900,000 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

- 54 -

Item # 21.



 

 

 

 

March 14, 2024 

Mr. Johnny Timmons, General Manager 
Tupelo Water and Light Department 
320 North Front Street 
Tupelo, MS 38802 

RE: 2023-065WL 

Labor and Materials Contract 

 North Green Substation  

Dear Mr. Timmons: 

We have evaluated the bids on the above-referenced project.  After careful consideration and 
evaluation, we recommend you accept the total lump sum bid price of $2,130,000.00 from Power 
Grid Company for the Labor and Materials Contract at the North Green Substation. 

Enclosed is the bid tabulation. 

After approval, please let us know and we will instruct Power Grid Company to proceed with the 
procurement of the insurance and bonds. 

If there are any questions or you need additional information, please contact me at 901.261.4639. 

Sincerely, 

 

Allen & Hoshall 

 
 
Russell Scott Burleson, P.E. 
Sr. Vice President 

 
 

   
 

 

 

 

 

C:\EU\Tupelo L&W\81925-N Green St Substation\Corr\Owner\Bid Tabs\L&M\L&M Recommendation Letter.doc 

- 55 -

Item # 21.



- 56 -

Item # 21.



 

 

 

 
 

BID TABULATION 
 

LABOR & MATERIALS 
 

FOR 
 

NORTH GREEN SUBSTATION 
TUPELO WATER & LIGHT 

 
BID OPENING: MARCH 14, 2024 

10:00 A.M. Local Time 
 

 
 
 

Bidder         Total Bid Price     
 

  
 Aubrey Silvey    $2,900,000.00     
 
 
 Garnet Electric    $2,317,600.00    

 
 

 Groves Electrical Services   $2,698,288.00    
 
  
 Power Grid Company   $2,130,000.00    
 
 
 Service Electric Company   $2,850,000.00    
  
 
 
Total Bid Price includes $50,000.00 for Authorized Contract Amendments.  
 
 
Engineer’s Recommended Acceptance in BOLD. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C:\EU\TUPELO L&W\81925-N GREEN ST SUBSTATION\CORR\OWNER\BID TABS\L&M\BID TAB L&M NORTH GREEN.DOC 

 

- 57 -

Item # 21.



- 58 -

Item # 21.



- 59 -

Item # 21.



- 60 -

Item # 21.



- 61 -

Item # 21.



- 62 -

Item # 21.



- 63 -

Item # 21.



- 64 -

Item # 21.



- 65 -

Item # 21.



- 66 -

Item # 21.



- 67 -

Item # 21.



- 68 -

Item # 21.



- 69 -

Item # 21.



- 70 -

Item # 21.



- 71 -

Item # 21.



- 72 -

Item # 21.



- 73 -

Item # 21.



- 74 -

Item # 21.



- 75 -

Item # 21.



- 76 -

Item # 21.



- 77 -

Item # 21.



- 78 -

Item # 21.



- 79 -

Item # 21.



- 80 -

Item # 21.



- 81 -

Item # 21.



- 82 -

Item # 21.



- 83 -

Item # 21.



- 84 -

Item # 21.



- 85 -

Item # 21.



- 86 -

Item # 21.



- 87 -

Item # 21.



- 88 -

Item # 21.



- 89 -

Item # 21.



- 90 -

Item # 21.



- 91 -

Item # 21.



- 92 -

Item # 21.



- 93 -

Item # 21.



- 94 -

Item # 21.



- 95 -

Item # 21.



- 96 -

Item # 21.



- 97 -

Item # 21.



- 98 -

Item # 21.



- 99 -

Item # 21.



- 100 -

Item # 21.



- 101 -

Item # 21.



- 102 -

Item # 21.



- 103 -

Item # 21.



- 104 -

Item # 21.



- 105 -

Item # 21.



- 106 -

Item # 21.



- 107 -

Item # 21.



- 108 -

Item # 21.



- 109 -

Item # 21.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Johnny Timmons, Manager TW&L 

DATE April 24, 2024 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF CONTRACT WITH POWER GRID 

COMPANY FOR BID # 2023-065WL (LABOR AND MATERIALS AT THE 

NORTH GREEN STREET SUBSTATION) JT  
  

 

Request:  

I recommend award of the attached contract with Power Grid Company for the Labor and Materials 

for the North Green Street Substation.  The contract price for this project is $2,130,000.00.  

 

Please let me know if you have any questions. 

 

- 110 -

Item # 22.



011724 81925  
 

  
 
M053098-EU AGREEMENT 00500 - 1 

DOCUMENT 00500 
 AGREEMENT 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into as of the 7th day of May 2024 between Tupelo Water and Light 
Department (hereinafter called Owner) and Power Grid Company (hereinafter called Contractor). 
 

Owner and Contractor, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, agree as follows: 
 
SECTION 1.  WORK 
 

The Project for which the Work under the Contract Documents may be the whole or only a part is 
generally described as follows: North Green 161:15 kV Substation. 
 
SECTION 2.  ENGINEER/ARCHITECT 
 

Allen & Hoshall (hereinafter called Engineer/Architect) is to act as Owner's representative, and shall 
have the duties and responsibilities and the rights and authority assigned to Engineer/Architect in the 
Contract Documents in connection with completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents. 
 
SECTION 3.  CONTRACT TIME 
 
 3.1   Completion.  The Work will be substantially completed on or before March 15, 2025, and 
completed and ready for final payment in accordance with paragraph 14.8 of the General Conditions on 
or before April 15, 2025. 
 
 3.2 Liquidated Damages.  Owner and Contractor recognize that time is of the essence of this 
Agreement and that Owner will suffer financial loss if the Work is not completed within the times specified 
in paragraph 3.1 above, plus any extensions thereof allowed in accordance with Article 12 of the General 
Conditions.  They also recognize the delays, expense and difficulties involved in proving in a legal 
proceeding the actual loss suffered by Owner if the Work is not completed on time.  Accordingly, instead 
of requiring any such proof, Owner and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as 
a penalty) Contractor shall pay Owner five hundred dollars ($500) for each day that expires after the time 
specified in paragraph 3.1 for Substantial Completion until the Work is substantially complete.  After 
Substantial Completion if Contractor shall neglect, refuse or fail to complete the remaining Work within 
the Contract Time or any proper extension thereof granted by Owner, Contractor shall pay Owner Five 
Hundred Dollars ($500) for each day that expires after the time specified in paragraph 3.1 for completion 
and readiness for final payment. 
 
SECTION 4.  CONTRACT PRICE 
 
Owner shall pay Contractor for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents in 
current funds as follows: 
 
ITEM 1  North Green 161:15 kV Substation    $2,080,000.00 
 
   Authorized Contract Amendments $50,000.00 
 
TOTAL CONTRACT PRICE -     $2,130,000.00 
    

 Two Million One Hundred and Thirty Thousand Dollars and No Cents 
 
All specified allowances are included in the above price and have been computed in accordance with the 
General Conditions. 

- 111 -

Item # 22.



011724 81925  
 

  
 
M053098-EU AGREEMENT 00500 - 2 

 
SECTION 5.  PAYMENT PROCEDURES 
 

5.1 Applications for Payment.  Contractor shall submit Applications for Payment in accordance 
with Article 14 of the General Conditions.  Applications for Payment will be processed by 
Engineer/Architect as provided in the General Conditions. 

 
5.2 Progress Payments.  Owner shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Price 

on the basis of Contractor's Applications for Payment as recommended by Engineer/Architect on or about 
the 15th day of each month during construction as provided below.  All progress payments will be on the 
basis of the progress of the Work measured by the Schedule of Values established in accordance with 
paragraph 2.8 of the General Conditions (and in the case of Unit Price Work based on the number of 
units completed) or, in the event there is no Schedule of Values, as provided in the General 
Requirements.  Prior to Substantial Completion, progress payments will be made in an amount equal to 
the percentage indicated below, but, in each case, less the aggregate of payments previously made and 
less such amounts as Engineer/Architect shall determine, or Owner may withhold, in accordance with 
paragraph 14.3(d) of the General Conditions. 
 

90% of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work (but delivered, suitably stored 
and accompanied by documentation satisfactory to Owner as provided in paragraph 14.2 of 
the General Conditions). 
 
90% of Work completed 

 
5.3 Final Payment.  Upon final completion and acceptance of the Work in accordance with 

paragraph 14.8 of the General Conditions, Owner shall pay the remainder of the Contract Price as 
recommended by Engineer/Architect as provided in paragraph 14.8 of the General Conditions. 
 
SECTION 6.  INTEREST 
 

All moneys not paid when due as provided in Article 14 of the General Conditions shall bear interest at 
the maximum rate allowed by law at the place of the Project. 
 
SECTION 7.  CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIONS 
 

In order to induce Owner to enter into this Agreement Contractor makes the following representations: 
 

7.1 Contractor has familiarized itself with the nature and extent of the Contact Documents, Work, 
site, locality, and all local conditions and all Laws and Regulations that in any manner may affect cost, 
progress, performance or furnishing of the Work. 

 
7.2 Contractor has studied carefully all reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions 

and drawings of physical conditions which are identified in the Supplementary Conditions as provided in 
paragraph 4.2 of the General Conditions, and accepts the determination set forth in paragraph 4.2 of the 
General Conditions of the extent of the technical data contained in such reports and drawings upon which 
Contractor is entitled to rely. 

 
7.3 Contractor has obtained and carefully studied (or assumes responsibility for obtaining and 

carefully studying) all such examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports and studies (in 
addition to or to supplement those referred to in paragraph 7.2 above) which pertain to the subsurface or 
physical conditions at or contiguous to the site or otherwise may affect the cost, progress, performance or 
furnishing of the Work as Contractor considers necessary for the performance or furnishing of the Work at 
the Contract Price, within the Contract Time and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the 
Contract Documents, including specifically the provisions of paragraph 4.2 of the General Conditions; and 
no additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar information or 
data are or will be required by Contractor for such purposes. 
 

- 112 -

Item # 22.



011724 81925  
 

  
 
M053098-EU AGREEMENT 00500 - 3 

7.4 Contractor has reviewed and checked all information and data shown or indicated on the 
Contract Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the site and 
assumes responsibility for the accurate location of said Underground Facilities.  No additional 
examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar information or data in respect 
of said Underground Facilities are or will be required by Contractor in order to perform and furnish the 
Work at the Contract Price, within the Contract Time and in accordance with the other terms and 
conditions of the Contract Documents, including specifically the provisions of paragraph 4.3 of the 
General Conditions. 
 

7.5 Contractor has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, 
explorations, tests, reports and studies with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 

7.6 Contractor has given Engineer/Architect written notice of all conflicts, errors or discrepancies 
that he has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution thereof by 
Engineer/Architect is acceptable to Contractor. 
 
SECTION 8.  CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
 

The Contract Documents, which comprise the entire agreement between Owner and Contractor 
concerning the Work, consist of the following: 
 

(a) This Agreement. 
 
(b) Performance Bond, Payment Bond and other Bonds. 

 
(c) Notice of Award. 

 
(d) General Conditions. 

 
(e) Supplementary Conditions. 

 
(f) These Specifications - See Document 00003 - TABLE OF CONTENTS. 

 
(g) Drawings, consisting of a cover sheet and sheets numbered as listed in Document 00004 - 

LIST OF DRAWINGS, TABLES AND SCHEDULES of specification. 
 

(h) Addenda numbers 1 to 1, inclusive. 
 

(i) Contractor's Bid. 
 

(j) The following which may be delivered or issued after the Effective Date of the Agreement and 
are not attached hereto: All Written Amendments and other documents amending, modifying, 
or supplementing the Contract Documents pursuant to paragraph 3.4 of the General 
Conditions. 

 
The documents listed in paragraphs (a) through (j) above are attached to this Agreement (except as 
expressly noted otherwise above).  There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above in 
this Section 8.  The Contract Documents may only be amended, modified or supplemented as provided in 
paragraph 3.4 of the General Conditions. 
 
SECTION 9.  MISCELLANEOUS 
 

9.1 Terms used in this Agreement which are defined in Article 1 of the General Conditions will 
have the meanings indicated in the General Conditions. 

 
9.2 No assignments by a party hereto of any rights under or interest in the Contract Documents 

will be binding on another party hereto without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; and 

- 113 -

Item # 22.



011724 81925  
 

  
 
M053098-EU AGREEMENT 00500 - 4 

specifically but without limitation moneys that may become due and moneys that are due may not be 
assigned without such consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited by 
law), and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no 
assignment will release or discharge the assignor from duty or responsibility under the Contract 
Documents. 
 

9.3 Owner and Contractor each binds itself, its partners, successors, assigns and legal 
representatives to the other party hereto, its partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives in 
respect of all covenants, agreement sand obligations contained in the Contract Documents. 
 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Owner and Contractor have signed this Agreement in quadruplicate.  One 

counterpart each has been delivered to Contractor and Engineer/Architect, and two to Owner. 
 
This Agreement will be effective on May 7, 2024. 
 
Owner: Tupelo Water and Light Department Contractor: Power Grid Company 
 
By:  By:  
 
 
 
  [Corporate Seal]                                     [Corporate Seal] 
 
 
 
 
 
Attest:  Attest:  
 
Address for giving notice: Address for giving notice: 
 
320 North Front Street     227 County Line Road  
 
Tupelo, MS 38802      Fayetteville, GA 30214  
 
           
  
 

License/Certificate No.:  
  

Agent for service of process: 
 

       
                    

                                                                                  
  

 
(If Owner is a public body attach ) (If Contractor is a corporation ) 
(evidence of authority to sign  ) (attach evidence of authority ) 
(and resolution or other document ) (to sign. ) 
(authorizing execution.   ) 

 
 
 
 END OF DOCUMENT 

- 114 -

Item # 22.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Johnny Timmons, Manager TW&L 

DATE April 22, 2024 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF AN EMERGENCY PURCHASE OF THREE (3) 500 kVA 

THREE PHASE PADMOUNT TRANSFORMERS JT  
  

 

Request:  

I respectfully request your approval of an emergency purchase for the following: 

 

 Three (3) 500 kVA 7200/12870 Delta – 120/208Y three phase padmount transformers – 

On April 9, 2024, Arkansas Electric submitted the lowest quote for these three 

transformers at $30,950.00 each, for a total of $92,850.00. This cost is subject to review 

at the time of shipment.  The lead time for these transformers is a minimum of thirty-six 

(36) weeks.      

 

 Note: The second quote received was from Howard Industries in the amount of $49,212.00 

 each with a lead time of 52 weeks. 

 

This emergency purchase is requested due to the following factors: 

 

 Volatility of the metals market and key transformer and wire cost factors beyond the 

manufacturer’s control 

 Lead/delivery times   

 

Please let me know if you have any questions. 

 

- 115 -

Item # 23.



ORDER 
 

ORDER AUTHORIZING EMERGENCY PURCHASE OF  

THREE (3) 500 kVA THREE PHASE PADMOUNT TRANSFORMERS 

 

 WHEREAS, the Tupelo Water and Light Department has nearly exhausted its supply of 

500 kVA three phase padmount transformers; and 

 WHEREAS, in order to replenish these transformers, quotes for three (3) 500 kVA three 

phase padmount transformers were obtained, and on April 9, 2024, Arkansas Electric 

Cooperatives, Inc. submitted the lowest and best quote for these three (3) transformers at 

$30,950.00 each, for a total of $92,850.00; and 

 WHEREAS, due to the lead time of a minimum of thirty-six (36) weeks for these 

transformers, Arkansas Electric Cooperatives, Inc. would not hold the quote, and the cost is subject 

to review at the time of shipment; and 

 WHEREAS, the manufacturer cited the volatility of the metals market and other key 

factors beyond the manufacturer’s control for being unable to guarantee the pricing; and 

 WHEREAS, an emergency purchase is authorized by Miss. Code Ann. § 31-7-13(k) to 

allow governing authorities to emergency purchase where it would otherwise be a detriment to the 

interest of the municipality to allow time for obtaining firm quotes and issuing purchase orders; 

and 

 WHEREAS, these materials and supplies are critical to placement of new and replacement 

of existing electrical projects, and the lead times involved between order and delivery pose an 

emergency of running out of these supplies and materials. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI, as follows: 

 SECTION 1. The prefatory clauses above are incorporated in the findings of the  City 

 Council. 

SECTION 2. The City Council finds that further delay will be detrimental to the  city, 

and an emergency purchase is required to order the materials and supplies  without a firm 

delivery price. 

SECTION 3. The Water and Light Department is authorized on an emergency basis to 

order these transformers without a firm delivery price. 

- 116 -

Item # 23.



 The foregoing order was proposed in a motion by Council Member _______________, 

seconded by Council Member _______________, and after discussion, no council member having 

called for a reading, was brought to a vote as follows: 

  Councilman Chad Mims  __________ 

  Councilman Lynn Bryan  __________ 

  Councilman Travis Beard  __________ 

  Councilwoman Nettie Davis  __________ 

  Councilman Buddy Palmer  __________ 

  Councilwoman Janet Gaston  __________ 

  Councilwoman Rosie Jones  __________ 

 Whereupon, the motion having received a majority of affirmative votes, the President of 

the Council declared that the Ordinance has been passed and adopted on this the ___________ day 

of May, 2024. 

       CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

 

       BY: ____________________________ 

              Lynn Bryan, President 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Missy Shelton, Clerk of the Council 

 

       APPROVED: 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Todd Jordan, Mayor 

 

       Date: __________________________ 

 

- 117 -

Item # 23.



- 118 -

Item # 23.



- 119 -

Item # 23.



- 120 -

Item # 23.



- 121 -

Item # 23.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Johnny Timmons, Manager TW&L 

DATE April 24, 2024 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF REQUEST TO REJECT BID NO. 2024-012WL (WATER 

MATERIALS)  JT  
  

 

Request:  

I recommend that you reject Bid No. 2024-012WL (Water Materials – 6 Month Supply Bid) at 

your regular meeting on Tuesday, May 7, 2024. We did not receive any bid responses. These items 

will be rebid as soon as possible. 

 

 

- 122 -

Item # 24.



Bid 2024-012WL No bids

Traci Dillard <Traci.Dillard@tupeloms.gov>
Thu 4/18/2024 10:41 AM
To: Pam Blassingame <Pam.Blassingame@tupeloms.gov> 

 
Traci Dillard
 
Controller
City of Tupelo
PO Box 1485
Tupelo, MS  38802
 
P:662-841-6456
C:662-401-6597
 
 

- 123 -

Item # 24.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Johnny Timmons, Manager TW&L 

DATE May 2, 2024 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF THE TRAFFIC COMMITTEE 

MINUTES OF MAY 2, 2024 JT  
  

 

Request: 

Attached for your review and approval are the Tupelo Traffic Committee summary and minutes 

from our meeting on May 2, 2024. 

 

- 124 -

Item # 25.



 

 

Memo 
 
To: Tupelo City Council 
 
From: Tupelo Traffic Committee  
 
Subject:   Review/Approve Traffic Committee Minutes of May 2, 2024 
 
Date: May 2, 2024 
  
 
Attached are the minutes of the Traffic Committee Meeting on May 2, 2024.  The following is a 
summary of their actions. 
 
Old Business: 
 
1. A request from Harvester’s Square Homeowners Association, Jayden Borden, 662-660-3182, 

Harvesterssquarehoa@gmail.com, for the installation of speed tables.  
 
Action: Approved 
 

2. A request from Mr. Kenny Wooldridge, 905 Terry Road, 662-871-9713, for the installation 
of speed tables on Parrish Drive. 
 
Action: Approved 
 

3. A request from Ms. Zola Ward, 3291 Meadow Drive, 662-401-0120, for the installation of 
speed tables on the following streets: 
a) Meadow Drive 
b) Beasley Circle 
c) Brooks Street 
d) Moore Avenue 
e) Evans Circle 
f) Kennedy Drive 
 
Action: Postponed 

 
New Business 
 
1. A request from Mr. Ryan Huerta, 5159 Timberlane Road, Tel. 858-472-7592, for the 

installation of some traffic calming measures on Timberland Road.  
 
 Action: Postponed 
 

- 125 -

Item # 25.

mailto:Harvesterssquarehoa@gmail.com


 

 

Tupelo City Council 
May 2, 2024 
Page 2 
 
2. A request from the Tupelo Public Works Department for the installation of “Children At 

Play” signs on Timberlane Road. 
 

Action: Approved 
 

3. A request from Mr. Joel Driskell, 1478 Orleans Place, Tel. 662-871-3465, 
jdriskell48@gmail.com, for the installation of some traffic calming measures along Butler 
and Purnell Roads. 

 
 Action: Postponed 
 
4. A request from Mr. Jim Kerrant, owner of N MS Dance Center @ 3480 Browning Drive, 

Tel. 662-324-8085, for the installation of some traffic calming measures. 
 
 Action: Postponed 
 
 
 
   
 
  
 

- 126 -

Item # 25.

mailto:jdriskell48@gmail.com


 

 

MINUTES OF THE TUPELO TRAFFIC COMMITTEE 
MAY 2, 2024 

 
A regular meeting of the Tupelo Traffic Committee was held on May 2, 2024, at 9:00 am in the 3rd 
floor conference room at City Hall.  Members present were Mr. Dennis Bonds, Mr. Norman Cruse, 
Officer Jeff Griffin, Mr. Brent Spears, Mr. Barton Wynn, Mr. Emmitt Foster and Mr. Mike Williams.  
Ms. Laura Kramer was absent. 
 
Audience members were Mayor Todd Jordan, Mr. Johnny Timmons, Manager TW&L, Mr. Don 
Lewis, COO, Mr. Chuck Williams, Public Works Director, Mr. Nathan Hughes, Public Works 
Department and Ms. Patti Thompson (Old Business, Item 2). 
 
Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by Mr. Dennis Bonds. 
 
Old Business  
 
1. A request from Harvester’s Square Homeowners Association, Jayden Borden, 662-660-3182, 

Harvesterssquarehoa@gmail.com, for the installation of speed tables.   
 
Mr. Dennis Bonds noted that the streets involved are classified as residential streets and the HOA 
has already provided a petition with the required signatures.  Therefore, Mr. Emmitt Foster made a 
motion to approve this item. Mr. Mike Williams seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.  

 
2. A request from Mr. Kenny Wooldridge, 905 Terry Road, 662-871-9713, for the installation of 

speed tables on Parrish Drive. 
  
Ms. Pattie Thompson was present to represent the homeowner’s association and show their support 
of this request. Mr. Dennis Bonds noted that Parrish Drive is a residential street and a petition has 
been completed with the necessary signatures.  Mr. Norman Cruse made a motion to approve this 
request. Mr. Emmitt Foster seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 
 

3. A request from Ms. Zola Ward, 3291 Meadow Drive, 662-401-0120, for the installation of 
speed tables on the following streets: 
a) Meadow Drive 
b) Beasley Circle 
c) Brooks Street 
d) Moore Avenue 
e) Evans Circle 
f) Kennedy Drive 
 
Mr. Dennis Bonds stated that these streets are all classified as residential streets and that a petition 
has been completed with the required signatures. Mr. Dennis Bonds asked to postpone this item 
until the next meeting to allow him to speak with the police department, fire department and other 
emergency services to make sure the placement of this number of speed tables would not cause a 
hindrance in responding to emergency situations.   
 
 
 
 

- 127 -

Item # 25.

mailto:Harvesterssquarehoa@gmail.com


 

 

Tupelo Traffic Committee  
May 2, 2024 
Page 2 

 
New Business 
 
1. A request fromMr. Ryan Huerta, 5159 Timberlane Road, Tel. 858-472-7592, for the 

installation of some traffic calming measures on Timberlane Road.   
 

Mr. Dennis Bonds has spoken with Mr. Huerta and explained that Timberlane Road does not have 
the correct classification for speed tables.  Mr. Bonds asked that this item be postponed to allow 
some study time and he would recommend some traffic calming measures at the next meeting. 
 

2. A request from the Tupelo Public Works Department for the installation of “Children At 
Play” signs on Timberlane Road. 

 
Mr. Mike Williams made a motion to approve this request. Mr. Brent Spears seconded the motion 
and it passed unanimously. 

 
3. A request from Mr. Joel Driskell, 1478 Orleans Place, Tel. 662-871-3465, 

jdriskell48@gmail.com, for the installation of some traffic calming measures along Butler 
and Purnell Roads. 

 
Mr. Dennis Bonds stated that both Butler and Purnell Roads are classified as collectors and would 
not be eligible for speed tables. Mr. Dennis Bonds asked to postpone this item to allow time to 
speak with Mr. Driskell and discuss some other available measures.  

 
4. A request from Mr. Jim Kerrant, owner of N MS Dance Center @ 3480 Browning Drive, Tel. 

662-324-8085, for the installation of some traffic calming measures. 
 

Mr. Dennis Bonds explained that speed tables will not be an option as Browning Drive does not 
have the correct classification. Mr. Bonds then asked that this item be postponed until the next 
meeting and he will get with Mr. Kerrant to discuss some other options.  

 
With there being no further business, Mr. Brent Spears made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Mr. 
Norman Cruse seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 
 
Submitted by:  Pam Blassingame 
 
 
 
 

- 128 -

Item # 25.

mailto:jdriskell48@gmail.com


 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Stephen N. Reed, Assistant City Attorney 

DATE May 1, 2024 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF THE 2024 CITY OF TUPELO AND 

ITAWAMBA COUNTY INMATE HOUSING INTERLOCAL COOPERATION 

AGREEMENT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE PRESIDENT OF THE CITY 

COUNCIL AND THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE ON BEHALF OF THE CITY 

SR 
  

 

Request:  

 The City of Tupelo and the Itawamba County Board of Supervisors and the Itawamba 

County Sheriff have agreed to enter into a formal interlocal agreement concerning the housing of 

City of Tupelo prisoners at the Itawamba County Jail. Housing at the Itawamba County Jail will 

be utilized primarily for individuals convicted and sentenced by the Tupelo Municipal Court to 

serve time of imprisonment for misdemeanor crimes committed within the city limits of Tupelo. 

This is done in an effort to alleviate overcrowding at the Lee County Jail, and to allow for the 

holding of individuals within the Lee County Jail that are awaiting their initial appearance, 

preliminary hearing, and/or trial.  

 

 Upon approval and final execution of this Interlocal Agreement by the City, it will be 

transmitted to the Office of the Attorney General for final approval.  

 

- 129 -

Item # 26.



- 130 -

Item # 26.



- 131 -

Item # 26.



- 132 -

Item # 26.



- 133 -

Item # 26.



- 134 -

Item # 26.



- 135 -

Item # 26.



- 136 -

Item # 26.



- 137 -

Item # 26.



- 138 -

Item # 26.



- 139 -

Item # 26.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Stephen N. Reed, Assistant City Attorney 

DATE May 1, 2024 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN EXECUTED CONTRACT WITH 

CENTURY CONSTRUCTION GROUP, INC. FOR THE PROVISION OF 

DEBRIS REMOVAL SERVICES IN ACCORDANCE WITH RFP 23-055PW 

SR 
  

 

The City of Tupelo advertised a Request for Proposals seeking to procure a 12-month 

pre-contract for debris removal services. After having received the proposals, each were 

evaluated by a scoring committee, and Century Construction Group, Inc, was determined to be 

the most responsible offeror, and was awarded a contract for these services.  

Request: Attached is an executed  12-month contract between the City of Tupelo and 

Century Construction Group, Inc. for debris removal services.  

- 140 -

Item # 27.



- 141 -

Item # 27.



- 142 -

Item # 27.



- 143 -

Item # 27.



- 144 -

Item # 27.



- 145 -

Item # 27.



- 146 -

Item # 27.



- 147 -

Item # 27.



- 148 -

Item # 27.



- 149 -

Item # 27.



- 150 -

Item # 27.



- 151 -

Item # 27.



- 152 -

Item # 27.



- 153 -

Item # 27.



- 154 -

Item # 27.



- 155 -

Item # 27.



- 156 -

Item # 27.



- 157 -

Item # 27.



- 158 -

Item # 27.



- 159 -

Item # 27.



- 160 -

Item # 27.



- 161 -

Item # 27.



- 162 -

Item # 27.



- 163 -

Item # 27.



- 164 -

Item # 27.



- 165 -

Item # 27.



- 166 -

Item # 27.



- 167 -

Item # 27.



- 168 -

Item # 27.



- 169 -

Item # 27.



- 170 -

Item # 27.



- 171 -

Item # 27.



- 172 -

Item # 27.



- 173 -

Item # 27.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Stephen N. Reed, Assistant City Attorney 

DATE May 1, 2024 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN EXECUTED ALTERNATE 

CONTRACT WITH ASHBRITT FOR THE PROVISION OF DEBRIS 

REMOVAL SERVICES IN ACCORDANCE WITH RFP 23-055PW SR 
  

 

The City of Tupelo advertised a Request for Proposals seeking to procure a 12-month 

pre-contract for debris removal services. After having received the proposals, each were 

evaluated by a scoring committee, and Ashbritt, Inc., was determined to be a responsible offeror, 

and was awarded an alternate contract for these services.  

Request: Attached is an executed 12-month contract between the City of Tupelo and 

Ashbritt for debris removal services.  

- 174 -

Item # 28.



Page 1 of 30 

DEBRIS REMOVAL SERVICE CONTRACT 
Project No. 2023-055PW 

CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

THIS CONTRACT, is made and entered into by and between the CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 
(the “CITY”), a body Corporate of the State of Mississippi, whose address for mailing is PO Box 1485, 
Tupelo, MS 38802 and, ASHBRITT, INC. (the "CONTRACTOR"), a state of Florida corporation, duly 
registered to do business in the State of Mississippi, whose address for mailing is 565 E. Hillsboro Blvd., 

Deerfield Beach, FL. 33441, and is effective as of the date of latest execution below. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the City of Tupelo, Mississippi has an emergency management plan that governs the 
City’s preparation and response to varying types of emergency situations, including, but not limited to, 
weather related disasters that cause damage to trees and vegetation, homes and structures, and public 
utilities, when such damage poses a great threat to the safety and wellbeing of the general public creating 
the need for swift response by debris collection efforts; and  

WHEREAS, it is most advantageous to the City of Tupelo to procure a 12-month pre-contract for 
debris removal services by the solicitation of proposals due to the nature of weather-related disasters of 
which the extent of the damage often caused by these weather events is rarely unknown and firm fixed-
price contracts for these services, procured by sealed bids, are not well suited to serve the interests of the 
City of Tupelo in the event of a weather-related disaster; and 

WHEREAS, on November 2nd and 9th of 2023, the City of Tupelo advertised in the local 
newspaper having general circulation in the municipality and through the Mississippi Procurement 
Technical Assistance Program that it would receive proposals from well-qualified debris removal firms to 
establish a twelve (12) month pre-contract and such proposals were received no later than 10 am on 
December 4, 2023 (advertisement attached hereto as Attachment “A”); and 

WHEREAS, the City of Tupelo received proposals from eight (8) firms having varying degrees 
of experience concerning the collection, clearance, removal and hauling of disaster related debris; and  

WHEREAS, in accordance with the City’s procurements policies, a review committee consisting 
of seven (7) individuals opened and considered each proposal in light of the criteria contained in the RFP 
advertisement, and each proposal was scored and ranked by the committee members; and  

WHEREAS, based on the scoring criteria and specifications contained in the RFP, AshBritt, Inc. 
received the second highest average score, and were awarded an alternate contract by the Tupelo City 
Council during its regularly scheduled meeting of January 23, 2024, and such alternate contract may be 
used in the event that circumstances necessitate such action.  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained herein 
and for other good and valuable considerations flowing unto the parties, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which is hereby acknowledged, the CITY and the CONTRACTOR do hereby contract and agree as 
follows 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

1. CONTRACTED SERVICES
Ashbritt, Inc. (hereinafter “Contractor”) agrees to provide non-exclusive debris removal services in
accordance with the specifications set forth herein, and any other documents set forth by the City of
Tupelo (City) hereby incorporated into and made a part of this contract. No oral statements of any person
shall modify or otherwise affect the terms, conditions, or specifications stated in this contract. If other

- 175 -

Item # 28.



Page 2 of 30 

attachments or exhibits exist which are to be incorporated as part of this contract, the title of each 
document shall be listed here, as follows (use additional sheets, if necessary): 

Attachment B - Conflict of Interest 
Attachment C - Certification Regarding Lobbying  
Attachment D - RFP PW23-055 Debris Removal Assistance for the City of Tupelo with 

related notices, Clarification(s) and Amendment(s)  
Attachment E - Scope of Work per included RFP Response 
Attachment F – Contract Justification  
Attachment G - Mandatory Addendum to all City of Tupelo Contracts 

2. ABILITY TO CONTRACT
Ashbritt, Inc. (Contractor) warrants that he/she/it is qualified to provide the services, whether personal or
professional, as outlined in this contract. The Contractor agrees to conform to existing policies, rules, and
regulations of the City. The Contractor agrees to maintain throughout the contract period such licensing
and/or certification as may be required by law for the provision of services specified herein, if applicable.
The Contractor warrants that it is a validly organized business with valid authority to enter into this
contract; that entry into and performance under this contract is not restricted or prohibited by any loan,
security, financing, contractual or other contract of any kind; and, notwithstanding any other provision of
this contract to the contrary, that there are no existing legal proceedings or prospective legal proceedings,
either voluntary or otherwise, which may adversely affect its ability to perform its obligations under this
contract.

3. APPLICABLE LAW
The contract shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Mississippi,
excluding its conflicts of laws, provisions, and any litigation with respect thereto shall be brought in the
appropriate state courts of Lee County Mississippi. Contractor shall comply with applicable federal, state,
and local laws and regulations.

4. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS
Contractor understands that the City is an equal opportunity employer and therefore maintains a policy
which prohibits unlawful discrimination based on race, color, creed, sex, age, national origin, physical
handicap, disability, genetic information, or any other consideration made unlawful by federal, state, or
local laws. All such discrimination is unlawful and Contractor agrees during the term of the agreement
that Contractor will strictly adhere to this policy in its employment practices and provision of services.
Contractor shall comply with, and all activities under this agreement shall be subject to, all applicable
federal, State of Mississippi, and local laws and regulations, as now existing and as may be amended or
modified.

5. DURATION
This agreement shall be effective upon the approval by each party as indicated by the signature of its
authorized representative being affixed hereto. The term of this agreement shall be 12-months from such
effective date.

6. PROCUREMENT REGULATIONS AND APPROVAL
The contract is designed by the applicable provisions of the Mississippi Personal Service Contract
Review Board (“PSCRB”)Rules and Regulations, a copy of which is available at 210 East Capitol, Suite
800, Jackson, Mississippi 39201 for inspection, or downloadable at http://www.mspb.ms.gov.  It is
understood that the PSCRB does not and will not approve this contract, the guidelines are best determined
by the City of Tupelo that closely parallels the Federal Guidelines required for this contract. Additionally,
this contract is governed by the procurement policies of the City of Tupelo Mississippi, and appropriate
State and Federal laws and regulations concerning the appropriate of funds for the services made a part of

- 176 -

Item # 28.

http://www.mspb.ms.gov/


Page 3 of 30 

this agreement, including, but not limited to, 2 CFR § 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements and 44 
CFR § 13.36.  

7. REPRESENTATION REGARDING CONTINGENT FEES
Contractor represents that it has not retained any person to solicit or secure a City contract upon an
agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, except as
disclosed in Contractor’s bid proposal

8. REPRESENTATION REGARDING GRATUITIES
The bidder, offeror, respondent, or contractor represents that is has not violated, is not violating, and
promises that it will not violate the prohibition against gratuities set forth in Section 6-204 (Gratuities) of
the Mississippi Personal Service Contract Review Board Rules and Regulations.

9. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION: Contractor certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that
it:

a. is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any federal department or agency or any
political subdivision or entity of the State of Mississippi;

b. has not, within a three year period preceding this proposal, been convicted of or had a civil
judgment rendered against it for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with
obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state, or local) transaction or
contract under a public transaction;

c. has not, within a three year period preceding this proposal, been convicted of or had a civil
judgment rendered against it for a violation of federal or state antitrust statutes or commission of
embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false
statements, or receiving stolen property;

d. is not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(federal, state or local) with commission of any of these offenses enumerated in paragraphs two
(b) and (c) of this certification; and,

e. has not, within a three-year period preceding this proposal, had one or more public transactions
(federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default.

10. INTEGRATED AGREEMENT/MERGER
This contract, including all contract documents, represents the entire and integrated contractual agreement
between the parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements,
irrespective of whether they were written or oral. This contract may be altered, amended, or modified
only by a written document executed by the City and the Contractor. The Contractor acknowledges that it
has thoroughly read all contract documents and attachments and has had the opportunity to receive
competent advice and counsel necessary for it to form a full and complete understanding of all rights and
obligations herein. Accordingly, this contract shall not be construed or interpreted in favor or against the
City or the Contractor on the basis of draftsmanship or preparation.

11. MODIFICATIONS AND CHANGES IN SCOPE OF WORK
All modifications to the contract must be made in writing and signed by both parties to the contract. The
City may order changes in the work consisting of additions, deletions, or other revisions within the
general scope of the contract. No claims may be made by the Contractor that the scope of the contract or
of the Contractor’s services has been changed, requiring changes to the amount of compensation to the

- 177 -

Item # 28.



Page 4 of 30 

Contractor or other adjustments to the contract, unless such changes or adjustments have been made by 
written amendment to the contract signed by the City and the Contractor. If the Contractor believes that 
any particular work is not within the scope of the contract, is a material change, or will otherwise require 
more compensation to the Contractor, the contractor must immediately notify the City in writing of this 
belief. If the City believes that the particular work is within the scope of the contract as written, the 
Contractor will be ordered to and shall continue with the work as changed and at the cost stated for the 
work within the scope. 

12. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS
It is expressly understood and agreed that the obligation of the City to proceed under this agreement is
conditioned upon the appropriation of funds by the City of Tupelo. If the funds anticipated for the
continuing fulfillment of the agreement are, at any time, not forthcoming or insufficient, of the City to
appropriate funds or the discontinuance or material alteration of the program under which funds were
provided or if funds are not otherwise available to the City, the City shall have the right upon ten (10)
working days written notice to Contractor, to terminate this agreement without damage, penalty, cost or
expenses to the City of any kind whatsoever. The effective date of termination shall be as specified in the
notice of termination.

13. PAYMENT
Contractor agrees to accept all payments in United States currency via the City’s check issuing system.
The City agrees to make payment in accordance with Mississippi law on “Timely Payments for Purchases
by Public Bodies,” which generally provides for payment of undisputed amounts by the City within forty-
five (45) days of receipt of invoice. Mississippi Code Annotated § 31-7-305.

14. E-VERIFICATION
If applicable, Contractor represents and warrants that it will ensure its compliance with the Mississippi
Employment Protection Act of 2008, and will register and participate in the status verification system for
all newly hired employees. Mississippi Code Annotated §§ 71-11-1 et seq. The term “employee” as used
herein means any person that is hired to perform work within the State of Mississippi. As used herein,
“status verification system” means the Illegal Immigration Reform and Immigration Responsibility Act of
1996 that is operated by the United States Department of Homeland Security, also known as the E-Verify
Program, or any other successor electronic verification system replacing the E-Verify Program.
Contractor agrees to maintain records of such compliance. Upon request of the City and after approval of
the Social Security Administration or Department of Homeland Security when required, Contractor
agrees to provide a copy of each such verification. Contractor further represents and warrants that any
person assigned to perform services hereafter meets the employment eligibility requirements of all
immigration laws. The breach of this agreement may subject Contractor to the following:

A. termination of this contract for services and ineligibility for any state or public contract in
Mississippi for up to three (3) years with notice of such cancellation/termination being made
public;

B. the loss of any license, permit, certification or other document granted to Contractor by an
local, state, or federal governmental entity for the right to do business in Mississippi for up to one
(1) year; or,

C. both. In the event of such cancellation/termination, Contractor would also be liable for any
additional costs incurred by the City due to Contract cancellation or loss of license or permit to do
business in the City or State.

15. STOP WORK ORDER

- 178 -

Item # 28.



Page 5 of 30 

This section applies to contracts following the guidelines of the PSCRB as follows: 

A. Order to Stop Work: The City, may, by written order to Contractor at any time, and without
notice to any surety, require Contractor to stop all or any part of the work called for by this
contract. This order shall be for a specified period not exceeding 90 days after the order is
delivered to Contractor, unless the parties agree to any further period. Any such order shall be
identified specifically as a stop work order issued pursuant to this clause. Upon receipt of such an
order, Contractor shall forthwith comply with its terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize
the occurrence of costs allocable to the work covered by the order during the period of work
stoppage. Before the stop work order expires, or within any further period to which the parties
shall have agreed, the City shall either:

1. cancel the stop work order; or,
2. terminate the work covered by such order as provided in the Termination for Default
clause or the Termination for Convenience clause of this contract.

B. Cancellation or Expiration of the Order: If a stop work order issued under this clause is
canceled at any time during the period specified in the order, or if the period of the order or any
extension thereof expires, Contractor shall have the right to resume work. An appropriate
adjustment shall be made in the delivery schedule or Contractor price, or both, and the contract
shall be modified in writing accordingly, if:

1. the stop work order results in an increase in the time required for, or in Contractor’s
cost properly allocable to, the performance of any part of this contract; and,

2. Contractor asserts a claim for such an adjustment within 30 days after the end of the
period of work stoppage; provided that, if the City decides that the facts justify such
action, any such claim asserted may be received and acted upon at any time prior to final
payment under this contract.

C. Termination of Stopped Work: If a stop work order is not canceled and the work covered by
such order is terminated for default or convenience, the reasonable costs resulting from the stop
work order shall be allowed by adjustment or otherwise.

D. Adjustments of Price: Any adjustment in contract price made pursuant to this clause shall be
determined in accordance with the Price Adjustment clause of this contract, if applicable.

16. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE and CONVENIENCE
A. Termination. The City Engineer or designee may, when the interests of the City so require,
terminate this contract in whole or in part, for the convenience of the City. The City Engineer or
designee shall give written notice of the termination to Contractor specifying the part of the
contract terminated and when termination becomes effective.

B. Contractor’s Obligations. Contractor shall incur no further obligations in connection with the
terminated work and on the date set in the notice of termination Contractor will stop work to the
extent specified. Contractor shall also terminate outstanding orders and subcontracts as they relate
to the terminated work. Contractor shall settle the liabilities and claims arising out of the
termination of subcontracts and orders connected with the terminated work. The COO or designee
may direct Contractor to assign Contractor’s right, title, an interest under terminated orders or
subcontracts to the City. Contractor must still complete the work not terminated by the notice of
termination and may incur obligations as are necessary to do so.

- 179 -

Item # 28.



Page 6 of 30 

17. TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT
A. Default. If Contractor refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this contract with such
diligence as will ensure its completion within the time specified in this contract or any extension thereof,
or otherwise fails to timely satisfy the contract provisions, or commits any other substantial breach of this
contract, the City Engineer or designee may notify Contractor in writing of the delay or nonperformance
and if not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in writing by the City Engineer or designee,
such officer may terminate Contractor’s right to proceed with the contract or such part of the contract as
to which there has been delay or a failure to properly perform. In the event of termination in whole or in
part, the City Engineer or designee may procure similar supplies or services in a manner and upon terms
deemed appropriate by the City Engineer or designee. Contractor shall continue performance of the
contract to the extent it is not terminated and shall be liable for excess costs incurred in procuring similar
goods or services.

B. Contractor’s Duties. Notwithstanding termination of the contract and subject to any directions from
the City, Contractor shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to protect and preserve property in
the possession of Contractor in which the City has an interest.

C. Compensation. Payment for completed services delivered and accepted by the City shall be at the
contract price. The City may withhold from amounts due Contractor such sums not to exceed five percent
(5%) to protect the City against loss because of outstanding liens or claims of former lien holders and to
reimburse the City for the excess costs incurred in procuring similar goods and services.

D. Excuse for Nonperformance or Delayed Performance. Except with respect to defaults of
subcontractors, Contractor shall not be in default by reason of any failure in performance of this contract
in accordance with its terms (including any failure by Contractor to make progress in the prosecution of
the work hereunder which endangers such performance) if Contractor has notified the City Engineer or
designee within 15 days after the cause of the delay and the failure arises out of causes such as: acts of
God; acts of the public enemy; acts of the City, State and any other governmental entity in its sovereign or
contractual capacity; fires; floods; epidemics; quarantine restrictions; strikes or other labor disputes;
freight embargoes; or unusually severe weather. If the failure to perform is caused by the failure of a
subcontractor to perform or to make progress, and if such failure arises out of causes similar to those set
forth above, Contractor shall not be deemed to be in default, unless the services to be furnished by the
subcontractor was reasonably obtainable from other sources in sufficient time to permit Contractor to
meet the contract requirements. Upon request of Contractor, the City Engineer or designee shall ascertain
the facts and extent of such failure, and, if such officer determines that any failure to perform was
occasioned by any one or more of the excusable causes, and that, but for the excusable cause,
Contractor’s progress and performance would have met the terms of the contract, the delivery schedule
shall be revised accordingly, subject to the rights of the City under the clause entitled (in fixed-price
contracts, “Termination for Convenience,” in cost-reimbursement contracts, “Termination”). (As used in
this Paragraph of this clause, the term “subcontractor” means subcontractor at any tier).

E. Erroneous Termination for Default. If, after notice of termination of Contractor’s right to proceed
under the provisions of this clause, it is determined for any reason that the contract was not in default
under the provisions of this clause, or that the delay was excusable under the provisions of Paragraph (d)
(Excuse for Nonperformance or Delayed Performance) of this clause, the rights and obligations of the
parties shall, if the contract contains a clause providing for termination for convenience of the City, be the
same as if the notice of termination had been issued pursuant to such clause.

F. Additional Rights and Remedies. The rights and remedies provided in this clause are in addition to any
other rights and remedies provided by law or under this contract. Any failure or inaction on the part of the

- 180 -

Item # 28.



Page 7 of 30 

City to enforce any right or remedy contained in this agreement shall not constitute a waiver of such right 
or remedy.  

18. TERMINATION UPON BANKRUPTCY
This contract may be terminated in whole or in part by the City upon written notice to Contractor, if
Contractor should become the subject of bankruptcy or receivership proceedings, whether voluntary or
involuntary, or upon the execution by Contractor of an assignment for the benefit of its creditors. In the
event of such termination, Contractor shall be entitled to recover just and equitable compensation for
satisfactory work performed under this contract, but in no case shall said compensation exceed the total
contract price.

19. RECORDS AND AUDIT
The Contractor shall maintain such financial records and other records as may be prescribed by the City
or by applicable Federal and State laws, rules, and regulations. These may be kept according to the
Contractor’s usual method of recordkeeping, but must be sufficiently detailed to permit an accurate
accounting of contract funds and program activities. The contract and the procurement of goods and
services shall be governed by the applicable Mississippi statutes and the applicable provisions of the
Mississippi Personal Service Contract Review Board Regulations. The Contractor shall retain these
records for a period of three (3) years after final payment, or until they are audited by the City, whichever
event occurs first. These records shall be made available during the term of the contract and the
subsequent three-year period for examination, transcription, and audit by the Mississippi State Auditor’s
Office, its designees, or other authorized bodies. Where audits are required to be submitted to the City
before funding can be released, the audits must be submitted within the required timeframe and must be
acceptable; if a Contractor fails to submit an audit in a timely manner, or if the audit is unacceptable, the
city reserves the right to cancel or suspend the contract at the City’s discretion.

20. RECORDS RETENTION
The Contractor agrees to submit to the City quarterly program activity reports thirty (30) days subsequent
to the closing of each quarter. The Contractor agrees to submit to the City quarterly fiscal reports thirty
(30) days subsequent to the closing of each quarter, or other applicable period as made a part of this
contract and agreed to by both parties. The Contractor agrees to permit reasonable program review and
evaluation by the City; to provide access to any pertinent records; arrange meetings with appropriate
personnel; permit inspection of the premises; and to cooperate in any other reasonable requests for fiscal
and/or program information. Provided the Contractor is given reasonable advance written notice and such
inspection is made during normal business hours of the Contractor, the City or any duly authorized
representatives shall have unimpeded, immediate access to any of the Contractor’s books, documents,
papers, and/or records which are maintained or produced as a result of this contract for the purpose of
making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. All records related to this contract shall be
retained by the Contractor for three (3) years after final payment and or final closeout for this declaration
is made under this contract and all pending matters are closed. However, if any audit, litigation, or other
action arising out of or related in any way to this contract is commenced before the end of the three (3)
year period, the records shall be retained for one (1) year after all issues arising out of the action are
finally resolved or until the end of the three (3) year period, whichever is later.

21. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS
This section applies only to contracts for which the Contractor shall serve solely on an Independent
Contractor basis, as follows:

The Contractor, at all times, shall be regarded as an Independent Contractor and shall at no time act as an 
agent for the City. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed or construed by the City, the Contractor, or 

- 181 -

Item # 28.



Page 8 of 30 

any third party as creating the relationship of principal and agent, partners, joint ventures, or any similar 
such relationship between the City and the Contractor. Neither the method of computation of fees or other 
charges, nor any other provision contained herein, nor any acts of the City or the Contractor hereunder, 
create or shall be deemed to create a relationship other than the independent relationship of the City and 
the Contractor. The Contractor’s personnel shall not be deemed in any way, directly or indirectly, 
expressly or by implications, to be employees of the City. Neither the Contractor nor its employees, under 
any circumstances, shall be considered servants, agents, or employees of the City; and the City shall be at 
no time legally responsible for any negligence or other wrongdoing by the Contractor, its servants, or 
agents. The City shall not withhold from the contract payments to the Contractor any Federal or State 
unemployment taxes, Federal or State income taxes, Social Security tax, or any other amounts for benefits 
to the Contractor. Further, the City shall not provide to the Contractor any insurance coverage or other 
benefits, including Workers’ Compensation, normally provided by the City for its employees. 
Furthermore, none of the work performed under this contract shall be subcontracted without prior 
approval of the City. The City, throughout the life of the contract, shall have the right of reasonable 
rejection and approval of staff of the Contractor or its Subcontractors assigned to the work by the 
Contractor. If the City reasonably rejects staff of the Contractor or its Subcontractors, 
the Contractor must provide replacement staff or Subcontractors satisfactory to the City in a timely 
manner and at no additional cost to the City. The day-to-day supervision and control of the 
Contractor’s employees and Subcontractors are the sole responsibility of the Contractor. 

22. TRADE SECRETS, COMMERCIAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION
It is expressly understood that Mississippi law requires that the provisions of this contract which contain
the commodities purchased or the personal or professional services provided, the price to be paid, and the
term of the contract shall not be deemed to be a trade secret or confidential commercial or financial
information and shall be available for examination, copying, or reproduction.

23. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION
A. Definition: “Confidential Information” shall mean:

1. those materials, documents, data, and other information which the Contractor has designated in
writing as proprietary and confidential; and

2. all data and information which the Contractor acquires as a result of its contact with and efforts
on behalf of the City, and any other information designated in writing as confidential by the City.

Each party to this contract agrees to protect all Confidential Information provided by one party to the 
other, to treat all such Confidential Information as confidential to the extent that confidential treatment is 
allowed under State and/or Federal law, and, except as otherwise required by law, not to publish or 
disclose such information to any third party without the other party’s written permission, and to do so by 
using those methods and procedures normally used to protect the party’s own confidential information. 
Any liability resulting from the wrongful disclosure of confidential information on the part of the 
Contractor or its Subcontractors shall rest with the Contractor. Disclosure of any confidential information 
by the Contractor or its Subcontractors without the express written approval of the City shall result in the 
immediate termination of this contract. 

B. Disclosure: In the event that either party to this contract receives notice that a third party requests
divulgence of confidential or otherwise protected information and/or has served upon it a subpoena or
other validly issued administrative or judicial process ordering divulgence of confidential or otherwise
protected information, that party shall promptly inform the other party and thereafter respond in
conformity with such subpoena to the extent mandated by State law. This section shall survive the
termination or completion of this contract. The parties agree that this section is subject to and superseded

- 182 -

Item # 28.



Page 9 of 30 

by Mississippi Code of 1972, Annotated, Section 25-61-1, et. seq. regarding public access to public 
records. 

C. Exceptions: The Contractor and the City shall not be obligated to treat as confidential and proprietary
any information disclosed by the other party (“The Disclosing Party”) which:

1. is rightfully known to the Contractor prior to negotiations leading to this contract, other than
information obtained in confidence under prior engagements;

2. is generally known or easily ascertainable to non-parties of ordinary skill in the business of the
Contractor;

3. is released by the Disclosing Party to any other person, firm, or entity (including governmental
agencies or bureaus) without restriction;

4. is independently developed by the recipient without any reliance on confidential information;

5. is, or later becomes, part of the public domain or may be lawfully obtained by the City or the
Contractor from any non-party; or

6. is disclosed with the Disclosing Party’s prior written consent.

D. Contractor agrees to comply with the Administrative Simplifications provisions of the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, including electronic data interchange, code sets,
identifiers, security, and privacy provisions, as may be applicable to the services under this contract.

E. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary contained herein, it is recognized that the City is a
public entity of the State of Mississippi and is subject to the Mississippi Public Records Act. Mississippi
Code Annotated §§ 25-61-1 et seq. If a public records request is made for any information provided to the
City pursuant to the agreement and designated by the Contractor in writing as trade secrets or other
proprietary confidential information, the City shall follow the provisions of Mississippi Code Annotated
§§ 25-61-9 and 79-23-1 before disclosing such information. The City shall not be liable to the Contractor
for disclosure of information required by court order or law.

24. TRANSPARENCY (PSCRB 7-1-16)
This contract, including any accompanying exhibits, attachments, and appendices, is subject to the
“Mississippi Public Records Act of 1983,” and its exceptions. See Mississippi Code Annotated §§ 25-61-
1 et seq. and Mississippi Code Annotated § 79-23-1. In addition, this contract is subject to the provisions
of the Mississippi Accountability and Transparency Act of 2008. Mississippi Code Annotated §§ 27-104-
151 et seq. Unless exempted from disclosure due to a court-issued protective order, a copy of this
executed contract is required to be posted to the Department of Finance and Administration’s independent
entity contract website for public access at http://www.transparency.mississippi.gov. Information
identified by Contractor as trade secrets, or other proprietary information, including confidential vendor
information or any other information which is required confidential by state or federal law or outside the
applicable freedom of information statutes, will be redacted.

25. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS AND WORK PAPERS
The City shall own all documents, files, reports, work papers, and working documentation, electronic or
otherwise, created under this contract, or in connection with the project which is the subject of this
contract, except for the Contractor’s internal administrative and quality assurance files and internal
correspondence. The Contractor shall deliver such documents and work papers to the City upon

- 183 -

Item # 28.

http://www.transparency.mississippi.gov/


Page 10 of 30 

termination or completion of the contract. The foregoing notwithstanding, the Contractor shall be entitled 
to retain a set of such work papers for its files. Contractor shall be entitled to use such work papers only 
after receiving written permission from the City and subject to any copyright protections. By entering into 
this contract, the Contractor conveys, sells, assigns, and transfers to the City all rights, titles, and interest 
it may now have or hereafter acquire under the antitrust laws of the United States and the State of 
Mississippi that relate to the particular goods or services purchased or acquired by the City under this 
contract. 

26. FAILURE TO DELIVER
In the event of failure of the Contractor to deliver goods or services in accordance with the contract terms
and conditions, the City, after due written notice, may procure the services from other sources and hold
the Contractor responsible for any resulting additional purchase and administrative costs. This remedy
shall be in addition to any other remedies that the City may have.

27. FORCE MAJEURE
Each party shall be excused from performance for any period and to the extent that it is prevented from
performing any obligation or service, in whole or in part, as a result of causes beyond the reasonable
control and without the fault or negligence of such party and/or its Subcontractors. Such acts shall include
without limitation acts of God, strikes, lockouts, riots, acts of war, epidemics, governmental regulations
superimposed after the fact, fire, earthquakes, floods, or other natural disasters (the “Force Majeure
Events”). When such a cause arises, the Contractor shall notify the City immediately in writing of the
cause of its inability to perform, how it affects its performance, and the anticipated duration of the
inability to perform. Delays in delivery or in meeting completion dates due to Force Majeure Events shall
automatically extend such dates for a period equal to the duration of the delay caused by such events,
unless the City determines it to be in its best interest to terminate the contract.

28. INDEMNIFICATION
To the fullest extent allowed by law, the Contractor shall indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless,
protect, and exonerate the City of Tupelo and its officers, employees, agents, and representatives from
and against all claims, demands, liabilities, suits, actions, damages, losses, and costs of every kind and
nature whatsoever, including, without limitation, court costs, investigative fees and expenses, and
attorneys’ fees, arising out of or caused by the Contractor and/or its partners, principals, agents,
employees and/or Subcontractors in the performance of or failure to perform this contract. In the City’s
sole discretion, the Contractor may be allowed to control the defense of any such claim, suit, etc. In the
event the Contractor defends said claim or suit, etc. the Contractor shall use legal counsel acceptable to
the City; the Contractor shall be solely responsible for all costs and/or expenses associated with such
defense, and the City shall be entitled to participate in said defense. The Contractor shall not settle any
claim or suit, etc. without the City’s concurrence, which the City shall not unreasonably withhold.

29. NO LIMITATION OF LIABILITY
Nothing in this Contract shall be interpreted as excluding or limiting any tort liability of the Contractor
for harm caused by the intentional or reckless conduct of the Contractor or for the damages incurred
through the negligent performance of duties by the Contractor or the delivery of products that are
defective due to negligent construction.

30. ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND EXPENSES
Subject to other terms and conditions of this contract, in the event the Contractor defaults in any
obligations under this contract, the Contractor shall pay to the City all costs and expenses (including,
without limitation, investigative fees, court costs, and attorneys’ fees) incurred by the City in enforcing
this contract or otherwise reasonably related thereto. The Contractor agrees that under no circumstances

- 184 -

Item # 28.



Page 11 of 30 

shall the City be obligated to pay any attorneys’ fees or costs of legal action to the Contractor. This clause 
shall not apply to any contracts entered into with another entity, board, or commission. 

31. RECOVERY OF MONEY
Whenever, under this contract, any sum of money shall be recoverable from or payable by the Contractor
to the City, the same amount may be deducted from any sum due to the Contractor under the contract or
under any other contract between the Contractor and the City. The rights of the City are in addition and
without prejudice to any other right the City may have to claim the amount of any loss or damage suffered
by the City on account of the acts or omissions of the Contractor.

32. SEVERABILITY
If any part of this Contract is declared to be invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability
shall not affect any other provision of the contract that can be given effect without the invalid or
unenforceable provision and to this end, the provisions hereof are severable. In such event, the parties
shall amend the contract as necessary to reflect the original intent of the parties and to bring any invalid or
unenforceable provisions in compliance with applicable law.

33. WAIVER
No delay or omission by either party to this contract in exercising any right, power, or remedy hereunder
or otherwise afforded by contract, at law, or in equity shall constitute an acquiescence therein, impair any
other right, power or remedy hereunder or otherwise afforded by any means, or operate as a waiver of
such right, power, or remedy. No waiver by either party to this contract shall be valid unless set forth in
writing by the party making said waiver. No waiver of or modification to any term or condition of this
contract will void, waive, or change any other term or condition. No waiver by one party to this contract
of a default by the other party will imply, be construed as, or require waiver of future or other defaults.
Failure by the City at any time to enforce the provisions of the contract shall not be construed as a waiver
of any such provisions. Such failure to enforce shall not affect the validity of the contract or any part
thereof or the right of the City to enforce any provision at any time in accordance with its terms.

34. CITY PROPERTY
The Contractor will be responsible for the proper custody and care of any City-owned or City-leased
property furnished for the Contractor’s use in connection with the performance of this contract. The
Contractor will reimburse the City for any loss or damage, normal wear and tear excepted.

35. UNSATISFACTORY WORK
If, at any time during the contract term, the service performed or work done by the Contractor is
considered by the City to create a condition that threatens the health, safety, or welfare of the general
public, the City, its property, or its employees, or for whom the contracted services are to be rendered, the
Contractor shall, on being notified by the City, immediately correct the deficient service or work. In the
event the Contractor fails, after notice, to correct the deficient service or work immediately, the City shall
have the right to order the correction of the deficiency by separate contract or with its own resources at
the expense of the Contractor.

36. ANTI-ASSIGNMENT/SUBCONTRACTING
The Contractor acknowledges that it was selected by the City to perform the services required
hereunder based, in part, upon the Contractor’s skills, expertise, and proper response to the Request for
Proposal. The Contractor shall not assign, subcontract, or otherwise transfer this contract in whole or in
part without the prior written consent of the City, which the City may, in its sole discretion, approve or
deny without reason. Any attempted assignment or transfer by the Contractor of its obligations without
such consent shall be null and void. No such approval by the City of any subcontract shall be deemed in
any way to provide for the incurrence of any obligation of the City in addition to the total contractual

- 185 -

Item # 28.



Page 12 of 30 

price agreed upon in this contract. Subcontracts shall be subject to the terms and conditions of this 
contract and to any conditions of approval that the City may deem necessary. Subject to the foregoing, 
this contract shall be binding upon the respective successors and assigns of the parties. 

37. THIRD PARTY ACTION NOTIFICATION
The Contractor shall give the City prompt notice in writing of any action or suit filed, and prompt notice
of any claim made against Contractor by any entity that may result in litigation related in any way to this
contract.

38. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
Within 24 hours following the signing of this contract, respondent shall provide copies of insurance
policies including all endorsements and bonding requirements as follows.

The Respondent shall save and hold the City harmless from and against all liability, claims and 
demands on account of personal injuries (including without limitation workmen’s compensation 
and death claims) or property loss or damages of any kind whatsoever, which arise out of or be in 
any manner connected with, or are claimed to arise out of or be in any manner connected with, 
the performance of any contract, regardless of whether such injury, loss or damage shall be 
caused by, or be claimed to be caused by, the negligence or other fault of the Responder, any 
subcontractor, agent or employee. 

A. Commercial General Liability - in the amount of two million dollars ($2,000,000.00) per
occurrence.

B. Worker's Compensation - Proposer shall provide a policy with employer’s liability coverage
with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence for each accident
or illness. The Worker’s Compensation policy shall state that it cannot be cancelled or materially
changed without first giving thirty (30) days prior notice thereof in writing to the Owner. Firms
that have owner/operators that have filed a "Notice of Election to be Exempt" shall supply a
signed copy of said notice. Any such exemption shall meet the requirements that qualify for an
exemption under the applicable Worker’s Compensation law.

C. Business Automobile Liability – Proposer shall provide coverage for all owned, non-owned
and hired vehicles with limits of not less than $1,000,000, per occurrence, Combined Single
Limits (CSL) or its equivalent.

39. Contractor agrees to abide by all local, state, and federal Environmental and Historical Laws as
established.

FEDERAL CLAUSES 

40. Contractor agrees to the following federal clauses:
The following is a list of frequent compliance issues with Federal procurement requirements when Tribal or 
local government or private nonprofit (PNP) Applicants use cooperative purchasing programs for 
procurements. 

If an Applicant plans to use Federal funds to pay or reimburse equipment expenses or services under a 
contract, that contract must contain the applicable clauses described in Appendix II to the Uniform Rules 
(Contract Provisions for Non-Federal Entity Contracts Under Federal Awards) under 2 C.F.R. § 200.326. 
Additionally, FEMA recommends certain contract clauses recommended by FEMA. 

- 186 -

Item # 28.



Page 13 of 30 

This appendix outlines the federally required contract provisions in addition to FEMA- recommended 
provisions applicable to PA applicant contracts. For some of the required clauses, sample language or 
references to find sample language are listed below. Sample language for certain required clauses 
(remedies, termination for cause and convenience, changes) is not listed since these must be drafted in 
accordance with the non-Federal entity’s applicable local laws and procedures. For the clauses which 
require that exact language be included, the required language is specifically identified below. 

The non-Federal entity alone is responsible for ensuring that all language included in their contracts meets the 
requirements of 2 C.F.R. § 200.326 and 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix II. 

REMEDIES: Applies to all FEMA grant and cooperative agreement programs. 

Contracts for more than the simplified acquisition threshold, currently set at $250,000, must address 
administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or breach contract 
terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as appropriate. See 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix II, A. 

TERMINATION FOR CAUSE AND CONVENIENCE: Applies to all FEMA grant and cooperative 
agreement programs. 

All contracts exceeding $10,000 must address termination for cause and for convenience by the non-
Federal entity, including how it will be affected and the basis for settlement. See 2 C.F.R. Part 200, 
Appendix II, B. 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY: This requirement applies to all FEMA grant and 
cooperative agreement programs and exact language below is required. 

Standard: Except as otherwise provided under 41 C.F.R. Part 60, all contracts that meet the definition of 
“federally assisted construction contract” in 41 C.F.R. § 60-1.3 must include the equal opportunity clause 
provided under 41 C.F.R. § 60- 1.4(b), in accordance with Executive Order 11246, Equal Employment 
Opportunity (30 Fed. Reg. 12319, 12935, 3 C.F.R. Part, 1964- 1965 Comp., p. 339), as amended by 
Executive Order 11375, Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity, and 
implementing regulations at 41 C.F.R. Part 60 (Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal 
Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor). See 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix II, C. 

Key Definitions. 

Federally Assisted Construction Contract. The regulation at 41 C.F.R. § 60-1.3 defines a “federally 
assisted construction contract” as any agreement or modification thereof between any applicant and 
a person for construction work which is paid for in whole or in part with funds obtained from the 
Government or borrowed on the credit of the Government pursuant to any Federal program 
involving a grant, contract, loan, insurance, or guarantee, or undertaken pursuant to any Federal 
program involving such grant, contract, loan, insurance, or guarantee, or any application or 
modification thereof approved by the Government for a grant, contract, loan, insurance, or guarantee 
under which the applicant itself participates in the construction work. 

Construction Work. The regulation at 41 C.F.R. § 60-1.3 defines “construction work” as the 
construction, rehabilitation, alteration, conversion, extension, demolition or repair of buildings, 
highways, or other changes or improvements to real property, including facilities providing utility 
services. The term also includes the supervision, inspection, and other onsite functions incidental to 
the actual construction. 

Required Language: 41 C.F.R. Part 60-1.4(b) requires the insertion of the following contract clause. 

During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows: 

(1) The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of

- 187 -

Item # 28.



Page 14 of 30 

race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. The contractor will 
take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during 
employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or 
national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: 

Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; 
rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The 
contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices 
to be provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. 

(2) The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of
the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without
regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin.

(3) The contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any employee or
applicant for employment because such employee or applicant has inquired about, discussed, or
disclosed the compensation of the employee or applicant or another employee or applicant. This
provision shall not apply to instances in which an employee who has access to the
compensation information of other employees or applicants as a part of such employee's essential job
functions discloses the compensation of such other employees or applicants to individuals who do not
otherwise have access to such information, unless such disclosure is in response to a formal complaint or
charge, in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action, including an investigation
conducted by the employer, or is consistent with the contractor's legal duty to furnish information.

(4) The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a
collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising
the said labor union or workers' representatives of the contractor's commitments under this section,
and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for
employment.

(5) The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965,
and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.

(6) The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of
September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant
thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and
the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules,
regulations, and orders.

(7) In the event of the contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract
or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or
suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government
contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in
Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and
remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule,
regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.

(8) The contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (1) and the
provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by
rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive
Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor
or vendor. The contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as
the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for

- 188 -

Item # 28.



Page 15 of 30 

noncompliance: 

Provided, however, that in the event a contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with 
a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the administering agency, the contractor may 
request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 

The applicant further agrees that it will be bound by the above equal opportunity clause with respect to its 
own employment practices when it participates in federally assisted construction work: Provided, that if the 
applicant so participating is a State, Territorial, or local government, the above equal opportunity clause is 
not applicable to any agency, instrumentality or subdivision of such government which does not participate 
in work on or under the contract. 

The applicant agrees that it will assist and cooperate actively with the administering agency and the 
Secretary of Labor in obtaining the compliance of contractors and subcontractors with the equal opportunity 
clause and the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor, that it will furnish the 
administering agency and the Secretary of Labor such information as they may require for the supervision 
of such compliance, and that it will otherwise assist the administering agency in the discharge of the 
agency's primary responsibility for securing compliance. 

The applicant further agrees that it will refrain from entering into any contract or contract modification 
subject to Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, with a contractor debarred from, or who has not 
demonstrated eligibility for, Government contracts and federally assisted construction contracts pursuant to 
the Executive Order and will carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of the equal opportunity 
clause as may be imposed upon contractors and subcontractors by the administering agency or the Secretary 
of Labor pursuant to Part II, Subpart D of the Executive Order. In addition, the applicant agrees that if it 
fails or refuses to comply with these undertakings, the administering agency may take any or all of the 
following actions: Cancel, terminate, or suspend in whole or in part this grant (contract, loan, insurance, 
guarantee); refrain from extending any further assistance to the applicant under the program with respect to 
which the failure or refund occurred until satisfactory assurance of future compliance has been received 
from such applicant; and refer the case to the Department of Justice for appropriate legal proceedings. 

“COMPLIANCE WITH THE COPELAND “ANTI-KICKBACK” ACT: The Contractor 
shall comply with 18 U.S.C. § 874, 40 U.S.C. § 3145, and the requirements of 29 C.F.R. Part 
3, as may be applicable, which are incorporated by reference into this contract. 
Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clause above 
and such other clauses as FEMA may by appropriate instructions require, and also a clause 
requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime 
contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier 
subcontractor with all of these contract clauses. 
Breach. A breach of the contract clauses above may be grounds for termination of the contract, 
and for debarment as a contractor and subcontractor as provided in 29 C.F.R. § 5.12.” 

CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT: This requirement applies to all 
FEMA contracts awarded by the non-federal entity exceeding $100,000 under grant and cooperative 
agreement programs that involve the employment of mechanics or laborers. It is applicable to construction 
work. These requirements do not apply to the purchase of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily 
available on the open market, or contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence. 

Standard: Where applicable (see 40 U.S.C. §§ 3701-3708), all contracts awarded by the non- Federal entity 
exceeding $100,000 that involve the employment of mechanics or laborers must include a provision for 
compliance with 40 U.S.C. §§ 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations at 29 
C.F.R. Part 5. See 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix II, E. Under 40 U.S.C. § 3702, each contractor must be 

- 189 -

Item # 28.



Page 16 of 30 

required to compute the wages of every mechanic and laborer based on a standard work week of 40 hours. 
Work exceeding the standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of 
not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked beyond 40 hours in the work 
week. 

Further, no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which 
are unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous. 

Suggested Language: 29 C.F.R. § 5.5(b) provides contract clause language concerning compliance with the 
Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. FEMA suggests including the following contract clause: 

Compliance with the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. 

(1) Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work
which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any
such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in
excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a
rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty
hours in such workweek.

(2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the clause
set forth in paragraph (b)(1) of this section the contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor
shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to
the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory,
to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be
computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards,
employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (b)(1) of this section, in the sum of $26 for
each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the
standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set
forth in paragraph (b)(1) of this section.

(3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. The (write in the name of the Federal
agency or the loan or grant recipient) shall upon its own action or upon written request of an
authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any
moneys payable on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such
contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-
assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by
the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any
liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided
in the clause set forth in paragraph (b)(2) of this section.

(4) Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in
paragraph (b)(1) through (4) of this section and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include
these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance
by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (b)(1)
through (4) of this section.

Further Compliance with the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act.

(1) The contractor or subcontractor shall maintain payrolls and basic payroll records during the course of
the work and shall preserve them for a period of three years from the completion of the contract for
all laborers and mechanics, including guards and watchmen, working on the contract. Such records
shall contain the name and address of each such employee, social security number, correct
classifications, hourly rates of wages paid, daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions

- 190 -

Item # 28.



Page 17 of 30 

made, and actual wages paid. 
(2) Records to be maintained under this provision shall be made available by the contractor or

subcontractor for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the
Department of Homeland Security, the Federal Emergency Management Agency, and the
Department of Labor, and the contractor or subcontractor will permit such representatives to
interview employees during working hours on the job.

CLEAN AIR ACT AND THE FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT:  
This requirement applies to contracts awarded by a non-Federal entity of amounts exceeding$150,000 under a 
federal grant. 

Standard: If applicable, contracts must contain a provision that requires the contractor to agree to comply 
with all applicable standards, orders, or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. §§ 7401-
7671q.) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 

§§ 1251-1387). Violations must be reported to FEMA and the Regional Office of the Environmental
Protection Agency. See 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix II, G.

Suggested Language: The following provides a sample contract clause. 

Clean Air Act 

1. The contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations
issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq.

2. The contractor agrees to report each violation to City and understands and agrees that the
City will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the Federal
Emergency Management Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency
Regional Office.

3. The contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding

$150,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FEMA.

Federal Water Pollution Control Act

1. The contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or regulations
issued pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251
et seq.

2. The contractor agrees to report each violation to City and understands and agrees that the
City will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the Federal
Emergency Management Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency
Regional Office.

3. The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding
$150,000.00 financed in whole or part with Federal Assistance provided by FEMA.

DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION: This requirement applies to all FEMA grant and cooperative 
agreement programs. 

Standard: Non-Federal entities and contractors are subject to the debarment and suspension regulations 
implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension (1986) and Executive Order 12689, 
Debarment and Suspension (1989) at 2 C.F.R. Part 180 and the Department of Homeland Security’s 
regulations at 2 C.F.R. Part 3000 (Non-procurement Debarment and Suspension). 

- 191 -

Item # 28.



Page 18 of 30 

Requirements: 

1. These regulations restrict awards, subawards, and contracts with certain parties that are
debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal
assistance programs and activities. See 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix II, ¶ H; and 2 C.F.R.
§ 200.213. A contract award must not be made to parties listed in the SAM Exclusions. SAM
Exclusions is the list maintained by the General Services Administration that contains the names of
parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared
ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549. SAM
exclusions can be accessed at www.sam.gov. See 2 C.F.R.§ 180.530.

2. In general, an “excluded” party cannot receive a federal grant award or a contract within the
meaning of a “covered transaction,” to include subawards and subcontracts. This includes
parties that receive Federal funding indirectly, such as contractors to recipients and
subrecipients. The key to the exclusion is whether there is a “covered transaction,” which is
any non-procurement transaction (unless excepted) at either a “primary” or “secondary” tier.
Although “covered transactions” do not include contracts awarded by the Federal
Government for purposes of the non-procurement common rule and DHS’s implementing
regulations, it does include some contracts awarded by recipients and subrecipients.

3. Specifically, a covered transaction includes the following contracts for goods or services:
a. The contract is awarded by a recipient or subrecipient in the amount of at least

$25,000.

b. The contract requires the approval of FEMA, regardless of amount.
c. The contract is for federally required audit services.
d. A subcontract is also a covered transaction if it is awarded by the contractor of a

recipient or subrecipient and requires either the approval of FEMA or is in excess of
$25,000.

Suggested Language: The following provides a debarment and suspension clause. It incorporates an optional 
method of verifying that contractors are not excluded or disqualified. 

Suspension and Debarment 

1. This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180 and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000.
As such, the contractor is required to verify that none of the contractor’s principals (defined at
2 C.F.R. § 180.995) or its affiliates (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at
2 C.F.R. § 180.940) or disqualified (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.935).

2. The contractor must comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart
C, and must include a requirement to comply with these regulations in any lower tier covered
transaction it enters into.

3. This certification is a material representation of fact relied upon by City. If it is later
determined that the contractor did not comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R.
pt. 3000, subpart C, in addition to remedies available to City, the Federal Government may
pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment.

4. The bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180,
subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C while this offer is valid and throughout the
period of any contract that may arise from this offer. The bidder or proposer further
agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in its lower tier covered
transactions.

- 192 -

Item # 28.

http://www.sam.gov/


Page 19 of 30 

BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING AMENDMENT: This requirement applies to all FEMA grant and cooperative 
agreement programs. Contractors that apply or bid for a contract of $100,000 or more under a federal grant 
must file the required certification. See 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix II, I; 31 U.S.C. § 1352; and 44 C.F.R. 
Part 18. 

Standard: Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay 
any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 
Member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. 
FEMA’s regulation at 44 C.F.R. Part 18 implements the requirements of 31 U.S.C. § 1352 and provides, in 
Appendix A to Part 18, a copy of the certification that is required to be completed by each entity as described 
in 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Each tier must also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in 
connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier-to-tier up to the 
Federal awarding agency. 

Suggested Language: 

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment, 31 U.S.C. § 1352 (as amended) 

Contractors who apply or bid for an award of $100,000 or more shall file the required certification. Each tier 
certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or 
organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of 
Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with 
obtaining any Federal contract, grant, or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Each tier shall also 
disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal 
award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier-to-tier up to the recipient who in turn will forward the 
certification(s) to the awarding agency. 

Required Certification: If applicable, contractors must sign and submit to the non-Federal entity the 
certification attached hereto.  

PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS: This requirement applies to all 
contracts awarded by a non-federal entity under FEMA grant and cooperative agreement 
programs. 

Standard: A non-Federal entity that is a state agency or agency of a political subdivision of a state and its 
contractors must comply with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act. See 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix II, J; and 2 

C.F.R. § 200.322. 

Requirements: The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in guidelines of 
the EPA at 40 C.F.R. Part 247 that contain the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, 
consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds 
$10,000 or the value of the quantity acquired by the preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000; procuring solid 
waste management services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; and establishing an 
affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered materials identified in the EPA guidelines. 

Suggested Language: 

1. In the performance of this contract, the Contractor shall make maximum use of products
containing recovered materials that are EPA-designated items unless the product cannot be
acquired—

a. Competitively within a timeframe providing for compliance with the contract
performance schedule;

- 193 -

Item # 28.



Page 20 of 30 

b. Meeting contract performance requirements; or
c. At a reasonable price.

2. Information about this requirement, along with the list of EPA-designated items, is
available at EPA’s Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines web site,
https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive- procurement-guideline-cpg-program.

3. The Contractor also agrees to comply with all other applicable requirements of Section
6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act.”

PROHIBITION ON CONTRACTING FOR COVERED TELECOMMUNICATIONS 
EQUIPMENT OR SERVICES 
(a) Definitions. As used in this clause, the terms backhaul; covered foreign country; covered
telecommunications equipment or services; interconnection arrangements; roaming; substantial or
essential component; and telecommunications equipment or services have the meaning as defined in
FEMA Policy 405-143-1, Prohibitions on Expending FEMA Award Funds for Covered
Telecommunications Equipment or Services (Interim), as used in this clause—
(b) Prohibitions.

(1) Section 889(b) of the John S. McCain National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal
Year 2019, Pub. L. No. 115-232, and 2 C.F.R. § 200.216 prohibit the head of an executive
agency on or after Aug.13, 2020, from obligating or expending grant, cooperative
agreement, loan, or loan guarantee funds on certain telecommunications products or from
certain entities for national security reasons.
(2) Unless an exception in paragraph (c) of this clause applies, the contractor and its
subcontractors may not use grant, cooperative agreement, loan, or loan guarantee funds
from the Federal Emergency Management Agency to:

(i) Procure or obtain any equipment, system, or service that uses covered
telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component
of any system, or as critical technology of any system;
(ii) Enter into, extend, or renew a contract to procure or obtain any equipment,
system, or service that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a
substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology of any
system;
(iii) Enter into, extend, or renew contracts with entities that use covered
telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component
of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system; or
(iv) Provide, as part of its performance of this contract, subcontract, or other
contractual instrument, any equipment, system, or service that uses covered
telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component
of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system.

(c) Exceptions.
(1) This clause does not prohibit contractors from providing—

(i) A service that connects to the facilities of a third-party, such as backhaul,
roaming, or interconnection arrangements; or
(ii) Telecommunications equipment that cannot route or redirect user data traffic or
permit visibility into any user data or packets that such equipment transmits or
otherwise handles.

(2) By necessary implication and regulation, the prohibitions also do not apply to:

- 194 -

Item # 28.

http://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive-procurement-guideline-cpg-program


Page 21 of 30 

(i) Covered telecommunications equipment or services that:
i. Are not used as a substantial or essential component of any system; and
ii. Are not used as critical technology of any system.

(ii) Other telecommunications equipment or services that are not considered
covered telecommunications equipment or services.

(d) Reporting requirement.
(1) In the event the contractor identifies covered telecommunications equipment or services
used as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part
of any system, during contract performance, or the contractor is notified of such by a
subcontractor at any tier or by any other source, the contractor shall report the information
in paragraph (d)(2) of this clause to the recipient or subrecipient, unless elsewhere in this
contract are established procedures for reporting the information.
(2) The Contractor shall report the following information pursuant to paragraph (d)(1) of
this clause:

(i) Within one business day from the date of such identification or notification: The
contract number; the order number(s), if applicable; supplier name; supplier unique
entity identifier (if known); supplier Commercial and Government Entity (CAGE)
code (if known); brand; model number (original equipment manufacturer number,
manufacturer part number, or wholesaler number); item description; and any readily
available information about mitigation actions undertaken or recommended.
(ii) Within 10 business days of submitting the information in paragraph (d)(2)(i) of
this clause: Any further available information about mitigation actions undertaken
or recommended. In addition, the contractor shall describe the efforts it undertook
to prevent use or submission of covered telecommunications equipment or services,
and any additional efforts that will be incorporated to prevent future use or
submission of covered telecommunications equipment or services.

(e) Subcontracts. The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph
(e), in all subcontracts and other contractual instruments.
DOMESTIC PREFERENCE FOR PROCUREMENTS:  As appropriate, and to the extent 
consistent with law, the contractor should, to the greatest extent practicable, provide a preference for 
the purchase, acquisition, or use of goods, products, or materials produced in the United States. This 
includes, but is not limited to iron, aluminum, steel, cement, and other manufactured products. 
For purposes of this clause: 
“Produced in the United States” means, for iron and steel products, that all manufacturing processes, 
from the initial melting stage through the application of coatings, occurred in the United States. 
“Manufactured products” mean items and construction materials composed in whole or in part of 
non-ferrous metals such as aluminum; plastics and polymer-based products such as polyvinyl 
chloride pipe; aggregates such as concrete; glass, including optical fiber; and lumber. 
RECOMMENDED CONTRACT PROVISIONS 

The Uniform Rules authorize FEMA to require additional provisions for non-Federal entity contracts. 
Although FEMA does not currently require additional provisions, FEMA recommends the following for PA 
applicant contracts: 

- 195 -

Item # 28.



Page 22 of 30 

ACCESS TO RECORDS. 
Standard: All recipients, subrecipients, successors, transferees, and assignees must acknowledge and agree 
to comply with applicable provisions governing DHS access to records, accounts, documents, information, 
facilities, and staff. Recipients must give DHS and FEMA access to, and the right to examine and copy, 
records, accounts, and other documents and sources of information related to the federal financial assistance 
award and permit access to facilities, personnel, and other individuals and information as may be necessary, 
as required by DHS regulations and other applicable laws or program guidance. See DHS Standard Terms 
and Conditions: Version 8.1 (2018). Additionally, FEMA is prohibited from providing reimbursement to 
any SLTT government, or PNP organization for activities made pursuant to a contract that purports to 
prohibit audits or internal reviews by the FEMA administrator or Comptroller General. 

Suggested Language: 

Access to Records. The following access to records requirements apply to this contract: 

1. The Contractor agrees to City, the FEMA Administrator, the Comptroller General of the
United States, or any of their authorized representatives’ access to any books, documents,
papers, and records of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to this contract for the
purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.

2. The Contractor agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means
whatsoever or to copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide the FEMA Administrator or his authorized
representatives access to construction or other work sites pertaining to the work being
completed under the contract.

4. In compliance with the Disaster Recovery Act of 2018, the City and the Contractor
acknowledge and agree that no language in this contract is intended to prohibit audits or
internal reviews by the FEMA Administrator or the Comptroller General of the United
States.

CHANGES: FEMA recommends, therefore, that a non-Federal entity include a changes clause in its 
contract that describes how, if at all, changes can be made by either party to alter the method, price, or 
schedule of the work without breaching the contract. The language of the clause may differ depending on 
the nature of the contract and the end-item procured. 

Standard: To be eligible for FEMA assistance under the non-Federal entity’s FEMA grant or cooperative 
agreement, the cost of the change, modification, change order, or constructive change must be allowable, 
allocable, within the scope of its grant or cooperative agreement, and reasonable for the completion of 
project scope. 

DHS SEAL, LOGO, AND FLAGS: FEMA recommends that Applicants include a provision that a 
contractor shall not use the DHS seal(s), logos, crests, or reproductions of flags or likenesses of DHS 
agency officials without specific FEMA pre-approval. 

Standard: Recipients must obtain permission prior to using the DHS seal(s), logos, crests, or 
reproductions of flags or likenesses of DHS agency officials. See DHS Standard Terms and Conditions: 
Version 8.1 (2018). 

Suggested Language: “The contractor shall not use the DHS seal(s), logos, crests, or reproductions of flags 
or likenesses of DHS agency officials without specific FEMA pre- approval.” 

COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL LAW, REGULATIONS, AND EXECUTIVE ORDERS: FEMA 
recommends that Applicants include an acknowledgement that FEMA financial assistance will be used to fund 
the contract along with the requirement that the contractor will comply with all applicable Federal law, 

- 196 -

Item # 28.



Page 23 of 30 

regulations, executive orders, and FEMA policies, procedures, and directives. 
Standard: The recipient and its contractors are required to comply with all Federal laws, regulations, and 
executive orders. 

Suggested Language: “This is an acknowledgement that FEMA financial assistance will be used to fund all 
or a portion of the contract. The contractor will comply with all applicable Federal law, regulations, 
executive orders, FEMA policies, procedures, and directives.” 

NO OBLIGATION BY FEDERAL GOVERNMENT: FEMA recommends that the non- Federal entity 
include a provision in its contract that states that the Federal Government is not a party to the contract and is 
not subject to any obligations or liabilities to the non-Federal entity, contractor, or any other party pertaining 
to any matter resulting from the contract. 

Standard: FEMA is not a party to any transaction between the recipient and its contractor. FEMA is not 
subject to any obligations or liable to any party for any matter relating to the contract. 

Suggested Language: “The Federal Government is not a party to this contract and is not subject to any 
obligations or liabilities to the non-Federal entity, contractor, or any other party pertaining to any matter 
resulting from the contract.” 

 PROGRAM FRAUD AND FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS OR RELATED ACTS: 
FEMA recommends that the non-Federal entity include a provision in its contract that the contractor 
acknowledges that 31 U.S.C. Chap. 38 (Administrative Remedies for False Claims and Statements) applies 
to its actions pertaining to the contract. 

Standard. Recipients must comply with the requirements of The False Claims Act (31 U.S.C. §§ 3729-
3733) which prohibits the submission of false or fraudulent claims for payment to the federal government. 
See DHS Standard Terms and Conditions: Version 8.1 (2018); and 31 

U.S.C. §§ 3801-3812, which details the administrative remedies for false claims and statements made. The 
non-Federal entity must include a provision in its contract that the contractor acknowledges that 31 U.S.C. 
Chap. 38 (Administrative Remedies for False Claims and Statements) applies to its actions pertaining to the 
contract. 

Suggested Language. “The Contractor acknowledges that 31 U.S.C. Chap. 38 (Administrative Remedies for 
False Claims and Statements) applies to the Contractor’s actions pertaining to this contract.” 

AFFIRMATIVE SOCIOECONOMIC STEPS: If subcontracts are to be let, the prime contractor is required 
to take all necessary steps identified in 2 C.F.R. § 200.321(b)(1)-(5) to ensure that small and minority 
businesses, women’s business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are used when possible. 

LICENSE AND DELIVERY OF WORKS SUBJECT TO COPYRIGHT AND DATA RIGHTS: The 
Contractor grants to the City, a paid-up, royalty-free, nonexclusive, irrevocable, worldwide license in data first 
produced in the performance of this contract to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use, including prepare 
derivative works, distribute copies to the public, and perform publicly and display publicly such data. For data 
required by the contract but not first produced in the performance of this contract, the Contractor will identify 
such data and grant to the City or acquires on its behalf a license of the same scope as for data first produced in 
the performance of this contract. Data, as used herein, shall include any work subject to copyright under 17 
U.S.C. § 102, for example, any written reports or literary works, software and/or source code, music, 
choreography, pictures or images, graphics, sculptures, videos, motion pictures or other audiovisual works, 
sound and/or video recordings, and architectural works. Upon or before the completion of this contract, the 
Contractor will deliver to the City data first produced in the performance of this contract and data required by 
the contract but not first produced in the performance of this contract in formats acceptable by the City. 

- 197 -

Item # 28.



- 198 -

Item # 28.



Page 25 of 30 

ATTACHMENT A  

Public Advertisement 

- 199 -

Item # 28.



- 200 -

Item # 28.



- 201 -

Item # 28.



Page 28 of 30 

ATTACHMENT D 

RFP 2023-055PW 

- 202 -

Item # 28.



Page 29 of 30 

ATTACHMENT E 

SCOPE OF WORK 
PER RFP RESPONSE 

- 203 -

Item # 28.



Page 30 of 30 

ATTACHMENT F 

CONTRACT JUSTIFICATION 
FOR DEBRIS REMOVAL 

Detailed description of contractual services to be performed including location, program, purpose, 
and condition or regulatory agency establishing the requirement for contract personnel services: 

Debris Removal for Federal Declaration 2023-055PW including Vegetative, Construction and 
Demolition, Damaged Structures, Removal of Structures, White Goods, Household Hazardous Waste, 
Electronic Waste, Soil/Mud/Sand, Stumps, Leaners and Hangers, Vehicles and or Vessels.  

Justification of request, including assessment of current personnel resources (i.e. utilization of 
current position vacancies, temporary increase in workload above capability of current workforce, level of 
expertise required, position classification not available to agency): 

Due to the overwhelming amount of Debris the existing City Employees, Equipment, and Mutual Aid 
Agreements will not be sufficient to perform the required services. 

Qualifications that make this contractor the best suited to perform this task: 

Contractor has Scored per the Request for Proposal to be more than sufficient to complete the task 
including A) quality of response, B) ability to perform, C) personnel/equipment/facilities/financial 
resources, D) record of past performance, and E) price. 

Justification of modification request (if applicable): 
NA 

Consequence of contract being disapproved: 

The City will not have the time/equipment/personnel to complete the project within the allotted time 
frame to qualify for the FEMA Public Assistance Alternative Procedures Pilot Program for Debris 
Removal or complete the task within 90 days. 

I have reviewed this contract request and determined that these services are needed and cannot be 
provided by current staff or through the staffing of a vacant position. 

______________________________ ___________________ 
Mayor, City of Tupelo  Date  

- 204 -

Item # 28.



ATTACHMENT G 

Mandatory Addendum to 
City of Tupelo Contracts 

October 28, 2022 

The City of Tupelo (hereinafter “TUPELO”), despite any contrary provision contained in 
any contract to which TUPELO is a party, does not waive any rights, benefits, or prohibitions 
that may be provided under any law, statute(s), regulation(s), or policies.  All provisions to the 
contrary in any contact to which TUPELO is a party are hereby null, void and deleted.  Not 
intended to be an exhaustive list, the following are examples of such matters and shall be 
exceptions to any contrary provision(s) in any contract to which TUPELO is a party. 

1. TUPELO does not indemnify or hold harmless any party.
Miss. Const. Art. 4, § 100; Miss AG Op., Clark (June 7, 2002); Miss. AG 
Op., Chamberlin (Oct, 18, 2002). 

2. TUPELO does not make any warranty.
Miss. Const. Art. 4, § 100; Miss AG Op., Clark (June 7, 2002); Miss. AG 
Op., Chamberlin (Oct, 18, 2002). 

3. TUPELO does not waive any claim; past, present, or future.
Miss. Const. Art. 4, § 100; Miss AG Op; Clark (June 7, 2002); Miss. AG 
Op., Chamberlin (Oct, 18, 2002). 

4. TUPELO does not waive its sovereign immunity.  TUPELO shall only be
responsible for liability resulting from the actions of its officers, agents, and
employees acting within the course and scope of their official duties.

Miss. Code Ann. § 11-46-1, et seq. 

5. TUPELO does not waive its Constitutional Eleventh (11th) Amendment
immunity.

U.S. Const. Amend. XI. 

6. TUPELO does not agree to the application of laws of another state.
U.S. Const. amend XI; Miss. Code Ann. 11-11-3; Miss. Code Ann. 11-45-

1; City of Jackson v. Wallace, 196 So. 223 (1940) 

7. TUPELO does not limit the tort liability of another party to the amount of the
contract or to any other set amount.

Miss. Const. Art. 4, § 100; Miss AG Op., Clark (June 7, 2002); Miss. AG 
Op., Chamberlin (Oct, 18, 2002); Miss. AG Op., Hathorn (May 28, 1992); 
Miss. AG Op., Davis (March 3, 1993). 

8. TUPELO does not agree to waive warranties of merchantability, fitness for a
particular purpose, or any common law warranties to which TUPELO is entitled.

- 205 -

Item # 28.



Miss. Const. Art 4, § 100; Miss Code Ann. § 75-2-719; Miss. AG Op., 
Clark (June 7, 2002); Miss. AG Op., Chamberlin (Oct, 18, 2002). 

9. TUPELO does not agree that a party may represent, prosecute or defend legal
actions in the name of TUPELO.

10. TUPELO may not and does not agree to the payment of attorney fees of a
“prevailing party” unless specifically authorized by statute. E.g. Miss. Code
Anno. § 31-7-309 (1972 as amended) payment of interest on outstanding invoice.

Miss AG Op., Nowak, 2009 WL 367665 (Miss.A.G.).  

11. Provisions that limit the time for TUPELO to pursue legal actions are deleted and
void.

Miss. Const. Art. 4, § 104; Miss. Const. Art. 4, § 100; Miss Code Ann. § 
15-1-5; Miss AG Op; Clark (June 7, 2002); Miss. AG Op., Chamberlin
(Oct, 18, 2002).

12. TUPELO does not agree to submit to binding arbitration.
Miss. AG Op., Clark (June 7, 2002); Miss. AG Op., Chamberlin (Oct. 18, 
2002). 

13. TUPELO will make payments for all amounts owed under a contract agreement in
accordance with state law.

Miss. Code Ann. § 31-7-305. 

14. TUPELO advises for all contracts entered into, the provisions of the contract
which will contain the commodities purchased or the personal or professional
services provided, the price to be paid, and the term of the contract shall not be
deemed to be a trade secret or confidential commercial or financial information,
and shall be available for examination, copying or reproduction.

Miss. Code § 25-61-9 (7). 

15. TUPELO must comply with Mississippi public records law.  Records furnished to
public bodies by third parties which contain trade secrets or confidential
commercial or financial information shall not be subject to inspection,
examination, copying or reproduction until notice to said third parties has been
given, but such records shall be released within a reasonable period of time unless
the said third parties shall have obtained a court order protecting such records as
confidential.

Miss. Code § 25-61-9 (1). 

16. Data processing software obtained by TUPELO under a licensing agreement that
prohibits its disclosure and which software is a trade secret as defined in Miss.
Code Section 75-26-3, and data processing software produced by a public body
which is sensitive must not be subject to inspection, copying or reproduction
under Mississippi public records law.  “Sensitive” means only those portions of

- 206 -

Item # 28.



- 207 -

Item # 28.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Stephen N. Reed, Assistant City Attorney 

DATE March 14, 2024 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF THE APPROVAL OF AN EXECUTED CONTRACT 

WITH DEBRIS TECH FOR THE PROVISION OF DEBRIS MONITORING 

SERVICES IN ACCORDANCE WITH RFP 23-056PW SR 
  

 

The City of Tupelo advertised a Request for Proposals seeking to procure a 12-month 

pre-contract for debris monitoring services. After having received the proposals, each were 

evaluated by a scoring committee, and DebrisTech was determined to be the most responsible 

offeror, and was awarded a contract for these services.  

Request: Attached is an executed 12-month contract between the City of Tupelo and 

DebrisTech for debris monitoring services.  

- 208 -

Item # 29.



- 209 -

Item # 29.



- 210 -

Item # 29.



- 211 -

Item # 29.



- 212 -

Item # 29.



- 213 -

Item # 29.



- 214 -

Item # 29.



- 215 -

Item # 29.



- 216 -

Item # 29.



- 217 -

Item # 29.



- 218 -

Item # 29.



- 219 -

Item # 29.



- 220 -

Item # 29.



- 221 -

Item # 29.



- 222 -

Item # 29.



- 223 -

Item # 29.



- 224 -

Item # 29.



- 225 -

Item # 29.



- 226 -

Item # 29.



- 227 -

Item # 29.



- 228 -

Item # 29.



- 229 -

Item # 29.



- 230 -

Item # 29.



- 231 -

Item # 29.



- 232 -

Item # 29.



- 233 -

Item # 29.



- 234 -

Item # 29.



- 235 -

Item # 29.



- 236 -

Item # 29.



- 237 -

Item # 29.



- 238 -

Item # 29.



- 239 -

Item # 29.



- 240 -

Item # 29.



- 241 -

Item # 29.



- 242 -

Item # 29.



- 243 -

Item # 29.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Tanner Newman, DDS Director 

DATE November 2, 2023 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF DEVELOPMENT CODE AMENDMENT – SIGNS TN 
  

 

Request:  

For discussion, review and approval.  

 

- 244 -

Item # S1.



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Ben Logan, City Attorney 

DATE April 11, 2024 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF DEVELOPMENT CODE AMENDMENTS TA-23-01  
  

 

Request:  

These development code amendments deal with residential uses by adding and revising 

definitions, changing uses within base zoning districts, updating tables and providing 

supplemental standards. These amendments will be considered separately by subject matter 

below: 

 

TA 23-01 (1) Definitions. Enacted in part 12-19-2023. 

TA 23-01 (2) Multifamily. Enacted in part 4-2-2024. 

TA 23-01 (3) Temporary Shelters. Moved to Study Agenda 2-20-2024. 

TA 23-01 (4) Congregate Living. Moved to Study Agenda 2-20-2024. 

TA 23-01 (5) Errata and Addenda of Separate Ordinances. Moved to Study Agenda 2-20-2024 

 

These matters will be moved up when completed. 

 

 

 

- 245 -

Item # S2.


	Top
	Item # 1.	PR: AQUATIC MONTH PROCLAMATION MAY 2024
	2024 Proclamation for Aquatic Month in May
	aquatic month

	Item # 2.	ADM: LC Sims Proclamation May 2024
	ITEM-LC Sims Day Agenda Request 2024
	PROCLAMATION -  LC Sims Day 2024

	Item # 3.	FD: SAFE HAVEN BABY BOX APR 2024
	ITEM-4.16.2024
	MS SHBB LSA

	Item # 4.	FD: DONATION FOR SAFE HAVEN BABY BOX APR 2024
	ITEM-Staff-4.16.24 2 (3)
	SHBB Exhibit B (9)

	Item # 5.	COU: MINUTES APRIL 19, 2024 MAY 2024
	Minutes 5-7-2024
	4-16-2024 Regular Revised

	Item # 6.	FIN: BILL PAY MAY 2024
	Bill Pay 5-7-2024

	Item # 7.	FIN: Advertising and Promotional Expenditures
	ad approval 5-7-2024

	Item # 8.	FIN: Budget Calendar for Fiscal Year 2025 MAY 2025
	budget calendar 2025
	BudgetCalendar2025

	Item # 9.	DDS: FEB 2024 PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
	Feb. 2024 Planning Committee Minutes Request
	MINUTES OF the February 5th meeting

	Item # 10.	DDS: LIEN REQUEST MAY 2024
	Demo Lien Requests 05.07.24
	Lien for Reclean

	Item # 11.	DDS: MSDH GRANT APPLICATION AWARD HEALTH COUNCIL MAY 2024
	DDS Health
	Sub-Grantee Questionnaire Tupelo
	Conflict of Interest Form 1244

	Item # 12.	DDS: REQUEST TO PURCHASE 200 DOZIER ST. MAY 2024
	200 Dozier Request 05.07.24

	Item # 13.	PD: REJECT BID 2024-014PD  MAY 2024
	ITEM-Staff-2024-014PD (2)

	Item # 14.	PD: REMOVAL OF NMNU SURPLUS ITEM MAY 2024
	Surplus removal Agenda request

	Item # 15.	PD: SEIZED VEHICLE TO NMNU ASSET LIST MAY 2024
	Seized vehicle Agenda Request

	Item # 16.	PD: NMNU SURPLUS LIST MAY 2024
	Vehicle surplus agenda request

	Item # 17.	FD: Fire Department Surplus two Fire Apparatus for sale MAY 2024
	ITEM-Staff-869a6df1513f4edeb209dfc0a8ad61f4 (7)

	Item # 18.	TMC: SURPLUS 2009 VERSA MAY 2024
	SURPLUS 2009

	Item # 19.	COL: MINUTES OF MARCH 18, 2024 MAY 2024
	minutes 03-24
	March 2024 signed minutes

	Item # 20.	TWL: SURPLUS ITEM - LOCATOR - ID # 1289 MAY 2024
	2024-05-07 Surplus Item from FAL - Locator

	Item # 21.	TWL: BID 2023-065WL AWARD - N GREEN SUBSTATION - POWER GRID COMPANY MAY 2024
	2024-05-07 Bid 2023-065WL Award - N Green Substation Labor & Materials - Power Grid Company
	edited 2024-05-07 Bid 2023-065WL Award - N Green Substation Labor & Materials - Power Grid Company

	Item # 22.	TWL: BID 2023-065WL CONTRACT AWARD - POWER GRID COMPANY MAY 2024
	2024-05-07 Bid 2023-065WL Contract Award - Power Grid Company
	2024-05-07 Bid 2023-065WL Contract Award - Power Grid Company

	Item # 23.	TWL: EMERGENCY PURCHASE OF THREE 500 KVA PM TRANSFORMERS MAY 2024
	2024-05-07 Emergency Purchase - 500 kVA 3-Phase PM Transformers
	2024-05-07 Emergency Purchase - 500 kVA 3-Phase PM Transformers - ORDER
	2024-05-07 Emergency Purchase - 500 kVA 3-Phase PM Transformers - Quotes

	Item # 24.	TWL: REJECT BID 2024-012WL - WATER MATERIALS 6 MONTH BID 2024-05-07
	2024-05-07 Bid 2024-012WL Rejection - Water Materials (6 Month Bid)
	2024-05-07 Bid 2024-012WL Rejection - Water Materials (6 Month Bid)

	Item # 25.	TWL: TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MINUTES MAY 2024
	2024-05-07 Traffic Committee Minutes 2024-05-02
	2024-05-07 Traffic Committee Minutes 2024-05-02

	Item # 26.	PD: Inmate Housing Interlocal Itawamba County May 24
	Agenda Request Itawamba Interlocal
	Jail Agreement Itawamba EXECUTED

	Item # 27.	ADM: Debris Removal Contract Century Construction Final Approval; May 24
	Debris Removal Contract Agenda Request (Century)
	TUPELO REMOVAL CONTRACT Century Construction Executed

	Item # 28.	ADM: Debris Removal Executed Contract Ashbritt; May 24
	Debris Removal Contract Agenda Request (Ashbritt)
	TUPELO REMOVAL CONTRACT Ashbritt (4.16.24) EXECUTED

	Item # 29.	ADM: Debris Monitoring Executed Contract DebrisTech; May 24
	Debris Monitoring Contract Agenda Request (DebrisTech)
	TUPELO MONITOR CONTRACT Debristech (4.16.2024) - signed 002

	Item # S1.	ADM:DEVELOPMENT CODE SIGNS APR 2024
	DEV CODE - SIGNS 11-7

	Item # S2.	ADM:DEVELOPMENT CODE AMENDMENT TA-23-01 APR 2024
	Agenda Item TA23-01

	Bottom

